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HTL LIMITED
Registered Office: GST Road, Guindy, Chennai - 600 032
CIN: U93090TN1960PLC004355
Email: coo@htilimited.com;  Website: www.htllimited.com
Phone: 044-22501020 Fax: 044-22500341

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Sixty First Annual General Meeting of HTL Limited will be held
on Friday, the 29" July, 2022 at 12 Noon at the Registered Office of the Company at GST Road,
Guindy, Chennai — 600 032 thru” Video Conferencing over MS Teams (link will be sent by email
separately) to transact the following business:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the

year ended 31° March, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and
Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Dr. R.M Kastia (holding DIN- 00053059) who retires by
rotation at this Annual General Meeting and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment.

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. To consider and approve re-appointment of Shri (.S.Naidu, Chief Operating Officer as
‘Manager’ of the Company under the Companies Act, 2013.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 198, Schedule V and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,, 2013 (“the Act”) (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to
the approval of the Central Government, if any and such other approvals as maybe
necessary, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of
Shri G.S. Naidu, Chief Operating Officer as the Manager of the Company w.e.£.25.6.2021
for a period of one year with the existing remuneration as fixed by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company in the meeting held on 17.1.2020 amounting to
56,21,739/- p.a., upon the terms and conditions set out in the explanatory statement annexed
to this Notice convening this meeting including remuneration to be paid in the event of loss
or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the period of his tenure.”

4. To consider and approve appointment of Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 00358658) as an
Independent Woman Director.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

* RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150 and 152 read with
Schedule 1V of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act), the Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and all other applicable provisions, if any, including
any modification(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thercof, for the time being in force,



and on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Dr, Tamali
Sengupta (DIN: 00358658), who was appointed as an Additional Director (Independent)
not liable to retire by rotation by the Board of Directors, pursuant to Section 161(1) of the
Act and whose term expires at this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as
an Independent Woman Director of the Company, whose office shall not be liable to retire
by rotation, to hold office for a term of 5 consecutive years w.e.f. 25.04.2022 to 24.04.2027.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things and take all such steps as
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

Registered Office By Order of the Board

Notes:

GST Road, Guindy For HTL Limited
Chennai — 600 032. QSUL 7 -l
Place: Chennai /\ S.NARAYANAN
Date: 16.06.2022 Company Secretary
Membership No. ACS 5772
1. Proxy

(i) Article 66 of the Articles of Association of the Company provides that a member entitled
to attend and vote at a meeting may appoint another person (whether a member or not) as
his proxy to attend a meeting and vote on a poll. No member shall appoint more than one
proxy to attend on the same occasion. A proxy shall not be entitled to speak at a meeting or
to vote except on a poll. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing and be
signed by the appointer or his attorney duly authorised in writing or if the appointer is a

body corporate, be under its seal or be signed by an officer or an attorney duly authorised
by it.

(ii) Article 67 of the Articles of Association of the Company provides that the instrument
appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is
signed or a notarially certified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than forty eight hours before the time for
holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument
proposes to vote, or in the case of a poll not less than 24 hours before the time appointed
for taking of the poll and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

2. DETAILS OF THE DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AND DIRECTOR TO BE
APPOINTED AT THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PURSUANT
TO SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON GENERAL MEETINGS ISSUED BY THE

INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA (ICSI) AS ON THE DATE OF
"NOTICE.

Name of the Director Dr. R.M. Kastia Dr. Tamali Sengupta
DIN 00053059 00358658
Date of Birth 10.10.1941 27.9.1962
Date of first Appointment 16.10.2001 25.4.2022

Experience/Expertise in
Specific Functional Areas

He is having more than five decades of
rich experience and of which more
than two decades of rich experience in
Telecom Industry in senior positions.

She has more than 3 decades of
experience in the legal field and
is a specialist in transnational
legal transactions in media, real
estate development, insurance
and infrastructure,

ol



Qualification(s)

PG & Phd
London.

in Chemistry, FBIM

Dr. Tamali Sengupta has a
Doctorate and Masters in Law
from  Stanford  University,
California and a Law Graduate
from Delhi University. She has
also completed Bachelor of Art
in Economics (Honours) from
Delhi University.

Directorship in other
Companies

HFCL Limited; HFCL Advance
Systems Private Limited; Moneta
Finance Private Limited; Anupriya
Fincap Private Limited; & Cosmic
Associates Private Limited.

HFCL Limited;, TSG Legal
Consulting Private Limited; Aria
Hotels and Consultancy Services
Private Limited.

Chairmanship/ Membership
of Committees (across all
public Cos.)

HFCL Limited-
Member of Stakeholders” Relationship
Committee;

HFCL Limited-
Member of Audit Commitiee;
Member of  Stakeholders’

Member of Debenture Allotment | Relationship Committee
Caommittee; &
Member of Banking Operation | Aria Hotels and Consultancy
Committee Services Private Limited-
Chairman of Nomination &
Remuneration Committee; &
Member of Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee
Shareholding in the Company | Nil Nil
Relationship with other Nil Nil
Directors and KMPs of the
Company
No. of Board Meetings held | 4/3 N.A.
/ Attended
Last Remuneration drown Slt‘ting Fee of RQ,SOO/“ per meeting N.A,

attended.

3. Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013

ITEM NO, 3

Shri G.S.Naidu, is a B.E. (Hons.) in Electrical Engineering from Bhopal University of Madhya
Pradesh over 3 decades of extensive experience in Manufacturing Business Operations, Green
field / Expansion projects. He started his career with M/s. National Aluminium Co. Ltd. in 1985,
during project stage having capital outlay of 2.4 billion USD and later joined M/s. Optel
Telecommunication Ltd., the pioneer company in the field of Optical Fibre, Optical Fibre cable and
Telecom Equipments.

During his employment with M/s. HFCL at Goa Plant and M/s. Sudarshan Telecom (a division of
M/s. West Coast Paper Mills Ltd.) he spearheaded the entire business activities of manufacturing of
Optical Fibre Cable. He also headed a green field power cable project of M/s. General Cable

Energy India Pvi. Ltd. (a unit of the General Cable Corporation, USA) having a capital outlay of 45
Million USD.

He has been appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of the Company w.e.f. 16.6.2015 and
designated as the ‘Manager’ of the Company. He has been re-appointed as Manager of the
Company w.e.f, 25.6.2021 for a period of one vear with the existing remuneration as approved by
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company in their meeting held on 17.1.2020.

The information required under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 are furnished in the
Annexure | which is forming part of this Explanatory Statement.




The re-appointment of Shri G.SNaidu, Chief Operating Officer as Manager is for a further period
of one year w.e.f. 25.6.2021 on the existing terms and conditions, including remuneration and the
same has been approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Commiitee of the Company in the
meeting held on 17.1.2020 and by the Board on 9.10.2021. A copy of the remuneration defails of
Shri G.S, Naidu is enclosed as Annexure- I1. The same may be treated as the abstract of the terms
of the appointment of the Manager under Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of Manager proposed to be re-appointed pursuant to Secretarial Standards issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India are furnished in Annexure- III, which is forming part of
this Explanatory Statement.

Shiri G.S. Naidu has been appointed as Nominee Director by HFCL Limited (Holding Company) in

Nimpaa Telecommunications Private Limited ( an Associate Company of Holding Company) w.e.f.
21.07.2021.

Shri G.8. Naidu along with his relatives, is deemed to be interested in the Resolution set out at [tem
No. 3 of the accompanying Notice with regard to his re-appointment.

Save and except the above, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company,
and their relatives, is in anyway concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution
set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice,

The Board recommends the re-appointment of Shri GG.8. Naidu as Manager of the Company as set
out in Item No. 3 for the approval by the Members of the Company, by way of Special Resolution.

ITEM NO. 4

In terms of Section 149(10} read with Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™), an
Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to 5 consecutive years on the Board of a
Company, but shall be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a Special Resolution by the
Company and disclosure of such appointment in Board’s Report.

Accordingly, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board
of Directors in their meeting held on April 25, 2022, had appointed Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN:
00358658) as an Additional Director in the category of Woman Independent Director on the Board

of Directors of the Company w.e.f. April 25, 2022, pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 and
161 of the Act.

In terms of the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 00358638)
holds office up to the date of ensuing AGM of the Company.

Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 00358658) has a Doctorate and Masters in Law from Stanford
University, California and a Law Graduate from Delhi University. She has also completed Bachelor
of Art in Economics (Honours) from Delhi University. She has more than 3 decades of experience
in the legal field and is a specialist in transnational legal transactions in media, real estate
development, insurance and infrastructure. She is a widely published author and is a Fellow of the
Centre of International Legal Studies at Salzburg. She is the Principal of T. Sengupta & Associates
a corporate law practice based in New Delhi, which provides advice on corporate law,
entertainment law, intellectual property, insurance, project finance, corporate governance, and
privatization. She has advised on telecom project for installing a fibre optic link throughout railway

network of the Indian Railways and commercializing the service to provide basic telecom services
to telecom companies.

Dr. Tamali Sengupta {(DIN: 00358658) has also registered her name in the databank for
Independent Directors maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (1ICA), Manesar
(notified under Section 150(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 as the Institute for the creation and
maintenance databank of Independent Directors) and paid the requisite fee therefor.



The Company has received a declaration from Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 00358658) to the effect
that she meets the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Act and is
independent of Management. Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 00358658) is not disqualified from being
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and has given her consent to act as
Director of the Company.

Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 00358658) is not debarred from holding office of Director pursuant to
any order passed by any authority.

Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 00358658) does not hold any equity shares in the Company.

The brief profile of Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 00358658) to be appointed as a Woman
Independent Director of the Company is given under the heading “Details of Directors seeking re-
appointment and Director fo be appointed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting pursuant to
Secretarial Standards on General Meeting issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India
as on the date of the Notice™ is furnished elsewhere in the Notice.

This Statement may also be regarded as a disclosure under §S-2 on General Meetings issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

It is proposed to appoint Dr, Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 00358658) as a Non- Executive Independent
Woman Director for one term of 5 (Five) consecutive years w.e.f. April 25, 2022 to April 24, 2027
pursuant to Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.
She will not be liable to retire by rotation.

Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 00358658) along with her relative, is deemed to be interested in the
Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice with regard to her appointment.

Save and except the above, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company,
and their relatives, is in anyway concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution
set out at Item No. 4 of the accompanying Notice.

The Board considers that the association of Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 003586358) would be of

immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to avail her services as an Independent Woman
Director.

The Board recommends the appointment of Dr. Tamali Sengupta (DIN: 00358658) as an
Independent Woman Director as set out in Item No. 4 for the approval by the Members of the
Company, by way of an Ordinary Resolution.

Registered Office By Order of the Board
GST Road, Guindy For HTL Limited
Chennai — 600 032. (.L

Place: Chennai )) NARAYANAN
Date: 16.06.2022 : Company Secretary

Membership No. ACS 5772
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Annexure Il

Remuneration Annexure

Name: Gilkara Shrinivas Naidu

Designation: Chief Operating Officer & Designated ' Manager’

Amount (Rs.)

Basic 1975680
House Rental Allowance 1185408
Special Allowance 374367
Driver Charges 211680
Car Maintenance & Fuel etc. 441000
LTA 164580
Fixed Bonus E
Annual Gross Salary (A) 43,52,715
Annual Benefit

PF 237082
Gratuity 94985
Total Annual Benefits ( B ) 3,32,067
‘Arinual Fixed Compensation (AFC) (A + B ) 46,84,782
*Performance Linked Incentive (PL1 @ 20% ) (C} 9,36,957
Total CTC per annum (A + B+ C) 56,21,739

* PLI would be paid in two Half Yearly installments in a year, on the basis
of company's performance score and ‘or employee's performance
score, as applicable across levels.




Annexure ITI

INFORMATION OF MANAGER PROPOSED TO BE RE-APPOINTED IN PURSUANT
TO SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON GENERAL MEETINGS ISSUED BY THE
INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA (ICSI) AS ON THE DATE OF

NOTICE.

Name of the Director

Shri G.8. Naidu

PAN ABRPN4626P
Date of Birth 19.07.1963
Date of first Appointment 25.06.2015

Experience/Expertise in Specific
Functional Areas

He is having a rich experience of more than three decades in
manufacturing operations, including Optical Fibre Cables and
also is having specialized in manufacturing of Optical Fibre
Cables.

Qualification(s)

B.E. Hons.

Directorship in other Companies

Nimpaa Telecommunications Private Limited

Chairmanship/ Membership of
Committees (across all public Cos.)

HTL Lid:-
Risk Management Committee- Member

Shareholding in the Company Nii
Relationship with other Directors Nil

and KMPs of the Company

No. of Board Meetings held / 4/4

Attended

Last Remuneration drawn Rs. 56,21,739/-

Proposed Remuneration (per
annum)

Rs. 56,21,739/-

The above statement may be treated as part of Statement annexed under Section 102 of the

Companies Act, 2013 for Item No. 3 of the AGM Notice.



HTL LTD.

Registered Office: GST Road, Guindy, Chennai - 600 032
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To the Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 61% Annual Report and Audited Accounts for
the financial year ended 315 March 2022.

FINANCIAL RESULTS {(Rs. in crore)
PARTICULARS 2021-22 | 2020-21
Revenue from Operations 1010.05 643.04
Other Income 2.76 3.74
Total Income 1,012.81 646.78
Profit / (loss) Before Depreciation, Finance Charges, 127.78 86.74
Exceptional ltem viz., VRS Ex-gratia and Taxation
Less: Depreciation 20.46 14.34

Finance Charges 34.44 26.99
VRS Ex-gratia - 6.38 -
Taxation 17.16 17.17
Net Profit/ (Loss) for the year 49.34 28.24
Other Comprehensive Income /Expenditure Re-measurement of
defined benefit plans (0.17) 0.27
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 49.17 28.51
Cost towards the options (ESOP / RSU) granted to the (0.26) 0.18
Employees of the Company by the Holding Company.
Surplus / (Deficit) Brought Forward from Previous Year 14.86 (13.83)
Surplus / (Deficit) Carried to the Balance Sheet 63.77 14.86
DIVIDEND

After taking into consideration of the expansion plans of the Company wherein the required

Margin money has to be met out of the internal resources, no dividend can be recommended
for the year.

RESERVES

The profits of the Company for the year ended 31t March 2022 of Rs. 48.92 Crores has

been retained in the Surplus account. There were no other transfers to the Reserves for the
year under review,

CHANGES IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There is no change in the capital structure of the Company during the year under review.



OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Company has achieved a Turnover of Rs, 101004.70 Lakhs during the financial year
2021-22 and the value of sales of different products made during the year under review with
comparative figures of the previous year are:-

(Rs in Lakhs)
PRODUCTS 2021-22 2020-21
Sale of Products - OFC , FRP & OFC Accessories 100540.96 64044.80
Sale of Services 22245 10.58
Other Operating Revenues 241.29 248.54
TOTAL 101004.70 | 64303.93

The Company’s operations were affected adversely during the first quarter i.e. April to June
due to intermittent lockdowns declared by Government due to COVID-19 pandemic.

The Company ensured all pre-cautionary measures to protect the interest of all employees
and made all its best efforts for continuing its business operations in the COVID — 19
pandemic environment during the year under review.

OUTLOOK

OFC, Passive Component Solutions & Cable Reinforcement Solutions

Higher and faster growth coupled with the Government’s push for digital India and modern
infrastructure facilitated the demand & large-scale deployment of FTTH Cables, Optical

Fibre Cables & Passive Components for 5G services. Your Company has growth potential
in these products.

Aerospace & Defence

The indigenisation initiative of Government of India in the Aerospace & Defence Sectors
gives a much required boost for domestic defence manufacturers. Your Company’s Wire
Harness products are certainly have better prospects,

Automotive & Industrial

Your Company is poised to benefit from rising premiuimization & customization as seen in
today’s & upcoming vehicles across segments such as the use of higher telematics,
infotainment and many other advanced features which can only be realized through more &
more wiring component or wiring harnesses as used in the vehicle.

It is in consideration of these facts and opportunity trends that Your Company’s business
outlook stands promising and positive over a longer period of foreseeable future,

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

Your Company increased its annual capacity during the year under review by its plant
expansions as under,

(a) OFC from 10.5 million FKM to 11.75 million FKM at Guindy plant;

(b) Micromodule cable from 14,400 Kms/Year to 28,800 Kms/Year at Guindy plant;



(¢) ARP from 3 Lakh Kms/ Year to 6.60 Lakh Kms/Year at Hosur plant; and
(d) FRP from 4.32 Lakh Kms/per annum to 5.04 Lakh Kms/ per annum at Hosur plant.

Your Company Established the Aerospace & Defence facility at Hosur in addition to the
already established facility at Guindy.

Your Company registered under Classes 9, 42 and 17 of Trade Marks Act, 1999 for its logo,

products and wordmark (HTL Ltd.) with the Trademarks Registry, Mumbai during the year
under review.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD HELD DURING THE YEAR

There were four meetings held during the Financial Year 2021-22 i.e., on 23.04.2021,
09.07.2021, 09.10.2021, and 12.01.2022. The intervening gap between two meetings of the
Board is within the stipulated time prescribed in the Companies Act, 2013.

ANNUAL RETURN

Annual Return i.e. E-form MGT-7 for the FY 22 shall be filed by the Company with the
Registrar of Companies, Tamil Nadu within the stipulated period and the same can also be
accessed thereafter on the Company’s website www.htllimited.com,

Annual Return i.e. E-form MGT-7 for the FY 2021 is already made available on the website
of the Company.

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE
AT THE TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE
WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCTAL INSTITUTIONS

The Rule 8 (5) of Accounts Rules, 2014 w.r.t. the details of difference between amount of
the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the valuation done while taking
loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions is not applicable to the Company during the
year under review,

LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS.

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act,

2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 outstanding
as at 315 March, 2022 are as follows;

Particulars Amount in Rs.

Loans given NIL

Guarantees provided NIL

Investments made 17,07,950
HOLDING COMPANY

HFCL Ltd. (Formerly Himachal Futuristic Communications Ltd.) is the Holding Company
and is having 74% equity shares in the Company. The Holding Company is a listed Public
Limited Company and its CIN is L64200HP1987PLC007466 and their Registered Office is
at 8, Electronics Complex, Chambaghat, Solan — 173 213 (Himachal Pradesh).



PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

In pursuant to Rule 8 (1) of Accounts Rules 2014, the highlights on performance of
Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures are not applicable to the Company.

COMPANY’S POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND
REMUNERATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the Company identifies and
ascertains the integrity, qualifications, expertise and experience of the person for
appointment as Director, Manager, Key Management Personnel (KMP) or at senior
management personnel and recommend to the Board his / her appointment. A person should
possess adequate qualifications, expertise and experience for the position he / she is
considered for appointment in the Company.

As per the policy followed by the Company, the non-executive directors are paid
remuneration in the form of sitting fee for attending Board and Committee meetings as fixed
by the Board of Directors from time to time, subject to the statutory provisions. The
Remuneration Policy of the Company may be accessed at the web-link:
https//www.htllimited.com/uploadimages/060422 [ 52133RemunerationPolicy.pdf,

Presently the sitting fee is Rs.2,500/- per Board / Committee meeting.

The NRC considers pay and employment conditions in the industry, merit and seniority of
the person and the paying capacity of the Company for the appointment and remuneration of

Manager and other Key Management Personnel viz., Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary.

The NRC fixes the remunecration package of Manager, Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary after taking into consideration the level and composition of
remuneration to be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the person to
ensure the quality required to run the Company successfully. The remuneration comprises of
salary, perquisites, allowances apart from the retirement benefits like Provident Fund,
Superannuation, Gratuity, etc. as per the Rules of the Company. Further, the Manager is
entitled to customary non-monetary benefits such as Company car, furnished
accommodation, health care benefits, leave travel, communication facilities, etc. The terms
of the appointment also provide for severance payment.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In pursuant to Section 178 with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee with
three Members namely, Shri Mahendra Nahata, Chairman, Shri R.M. Kastia, Member and
Shri Sharad Trivedi, Member.

There was one meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee held on
09.10.2021 during the period under review.



CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Company has a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and also its policy of

Corporate Social Responsibility pursuant to the requirements under the Companies Act,
2013.

The Members of the CSR Committee are Dr. R.M. Kastia, Chairman, Shri K.C.Jani,
Member and Shri Sharad Trivedi, Member.

There was one meeting of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee held on
22.03.2022 during the Financial Year 2021-22.

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT (RTA)

M/s. KFin Technologies Private Ltd. (M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited
amalgamated with this group Company), having its office at Selenium, Tower B, Plot No.
31 & 32, Gachibowli, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad-500 032 are the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has entered into transactions with related
party viz., HFCL Ltd. (formerly Himachal Futuristic Communications Limited), the Holding
Company and its Associate Company viz., Nimpaa Telecommunications Pvt Ltd. and Other
Related Company viz., Exicom Tele-Systems Ltd., as defined under Section 2(76) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Specification of Definitions Details) Rules,
2014, which were in the ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis and in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules issued there
under.

The Company has not entered into any transactions with the related parties which were at
arm’s length basis but not in ordinary course of business.

The details of the related party transactions as required under Accounting Standard 24 are
set out in Note No. 40 to the Financial Statements forming part of this Annual report.

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review the Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning
of Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014,

DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act Shri R.M. Kastia (DIN:
00053059) is retiring by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company and being eligible, offer himself for re-appointment.

During the year under review Shri M.P.Shukla, & Shri S.K. Gupta ceased to be Directors of
the Company due to their sad demise on 04.05.2021 & 05.05.2021 respectively. Your Board



of Directors places on record their appreciation for the valuable contribution made by them
during their tenure.

The Government of India nominated Shri Amit Katoch (DIN: 09349281), DDG (LFP),
DoT as their Nominee in the Board of the Company w.e.f. 20.09.2021 in the place of (late)

Shri S.K.Gupta for a period of three years or till the date of his superannuation or until
further orders, whichever is the earliest.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has Independent Directors as per the provisions of the Act, read with the
Schedules and Rules issued thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-

enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) and that they are independent of
management.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In pursuant to Section 177(8) with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its
Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has an Audit Committee with 3 Members namely, Shri
Dr. R. M. Kastia, Chairman, Shri K. C. Jani, Member, and Shri Amit Katoch, Member.

There were four meetings held during the Financial Year 2021-22 ie., on 23.04.2021,
09.07.2021, 09.10.2021, and 12.01.2022.

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

(a) Location and time where Annual General Meetings of the Company held in the last 3
years are given below:

Financial Year Location Date Time
Regd. Office, GST Road, Guindy, Chennai
BOROEZ Through Video Conferencing over MS Teams IGOF202.  d2Non
Regd. Office, GST Road, Guindy, Chennai
2lll>-#0 Through Video Conferencing over MS Teams 07082020  J2Naon
2018-19 Regd. Office, GST Road, Guindy, Chennai  29.07.2019 12 Noon

(b) Location and time where Extra Ordinary General Meetings of the Company held in
the last 3 years are given below:

Financial Year Location Date Time
Regd. Office, GST Road, Guindy, Chennai
20elel Through Video Conferencing over MS Teams el 202 12 Nopn

2019-20 Nil.

8, Commercial Complex, Masjid Moth, Greater

i : 23.10.2018 12 Noon
2018-19 Kailash- I, New Delhi- 110 048

8, Commercial Complex, Masjid Moth, Greater
Kailash- 11, New Delhi- 110 048 AGHIZENG  d2ion




COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Directors confirm that the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, as applicable to the Company have been complied with.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review, Shri G.S.Naidu, Manager, Shri C.D.Ponnappa, Chief
Financial Officer and Shri S.Narayanan, Company Secretary & General Manager (Legal)
continue to be the Key Management Personnel in accordance with the provisions of Section
203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under.

Shri G.S. Naidu, Chief Operating Officer has been re-appointed as ‘Manager’ of the
Company w.e.f. 25.06.2021 for a further period of one year with required approvals.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES’ AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules
5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Management
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof
for the time being in force), a statement showing the names of top ten employees of the

Company in terms of remuneration drawn as per the said Rules are given in ANNEXURE I
annexed herewith and forms part of this Report,

There is no employee drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:

1. that in the preparation of the accounts for the financial year ended 315 March, 2022,
the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanations
relating to material departures;

2. that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent (read with Note
No. 3 of Notes to the Audited Statement of Accounts) so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of
the Company for that period;

3. that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for

safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

4, that the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;



5. that the Directors have laid down proper internal financial controls to be followed by

the Company and that such internal financial controis are adequate and are operating
effectively; and

6. that the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DEPOSITORY SYSTEMS

Your Company’s Scrip has come under compulsory dematerialisation as per the amended
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. So far, 74% of the equity shares have been
dematerialised.

The ISIN allotted to the equity of the Company is INE133T0O1011.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The vision of CSR of the Company is to improve quality of life (social & economic) of the
community and society in which it operates.

The Company has taken up a Mobile Medical Unit (MMU) Project in collaboration with
.Wockhardt Foundation for providing health care to about 25,000 needy people per annum
in and around Chennai over a period of 3 years at a total cost of Rs.1,05,00,000/-, of which
Rs.65,48.,425/~ is funded out of the CSR obligation of the company for the financial year
2020-21. The Project is in progress. The residual amount of Rs. 39,51,575/- for this Project
" is funded from the CSR Obligation of the company for the financial year 2021-22,

The said Mobile Medical Unit (MMU) is accompanied by a professional healthcare team
comprising of an MBBS doctor, a Lab technician & a Pharmacist and is equipped to offer

diagnostics, medicines, blood/ urine tests, etc., all of which are made available to the
beneficiaries free of cost.

The Committee in their meeting held on 22.3.2022 has approved to take up a similar Mobile
Medical Unit Project in Hosur with the said NGO at a total cost of Rs. 51,50,550/- with an
initial capital expenditure of Rs. 24,85,290/- towards cost of | Ambulance and operational

expenses anmounting to Rs. 26,65,260/- for a period of 1 year for its CSR Obligation for FY
2021-22.

The CSR Obligation of the Company for the current financial year 2021-22 comes to
Rs. 86,06,035/-. Since the Company could not spent this amount during the Financial Year
2021-22, the Company has taken action to open a Bank Account in Yes Bank Ltd, T.Nagar
Branch, Chennai — 600 017 in the name “HTL Ltd- Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility
Account FY 2021-22” and will transfer the above mentioned amount of Rs. 86,06,035/- to

the said account as stipulated in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Amendment Rules, 2021.

In compliance with requirements of section 135 of the Act, the Company has laid down a
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy. The CSR Policy is available on the website



of  the Company and may be accessed at the web-link:
https://www_ htllimited.com/uploadimages/220422145734CSRPolicy.pdf.

The disclosures as required under the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable Rules are
furnished in ANNEXURE IT and forms part of this Report.

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

At the 59" Annual General Meeting of the Company, M/s. Oswal Sunil & Company (Firm
Registration. No. 016520N), Chartered Accountants, New Delhi were appointed for one

term of consecutive 5 years as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office till the
conclusion of 64" Annual General Meeting.

The Auditors’ observations in the Standalone Auditors” Report are self-explanatory and do
not call for any further comments. The Statutory Auditors in the Annexure to the Auditors’
Report has mentioned about delay in depositing of few statutory dues. In future, the
Management will make all efforts to deposit the same within time.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, your
Company has appointed Shri R. Balasubramanian, Practising Company Secretary having
Membership No. F10011 and C.P.No.11979 to conduct the Secretarial Audit of your

Company for the financial year 2021-22. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith
as ANNEXURE III to this Report.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark.

PERSONNEL

The manpower strength at the close of the financial year was 391 as compared to 344 at the
beginning of the financial year.

During the period under review, total 25 employees (who joined the services of the
Company prior to the date of disinvestment) opted for Voluntary Retirement under the
HTL- Voluntary Retirement Scheme 2021. A total amount of VRS compensation of
Rs. 6,37,67,165/- was paid to them.

Your Company carried out vaccination drive from July’21 until Feb’22 in Chennai & Hosur
which were instrumental in ensuring that your employees were adequately protected from
the novel coronavirus. Out of 1311 employees (including Contract employees), 1276 (97.33

%) employees (including Contract employees) have taken single dose and 1256 (95.80 %)
employees (inciuding contract employees} have taken both the doses.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY/ TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange
earnings and outgo as stipulated under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with



the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is set out in ANNEXURE IV and forms part of this
Report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN
MARCH 31, 2022 AND DATE OF THIS REPORT

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the

Company between the end of the financial year (March 31, 2022) and date of this Report
( April 25, 2022).

APPLICATION MADE OR PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY
CODE, 2016 (IBC)

In pursuant to the Rule 8(5) of Accounts Rules 2014, there is no application made or
pending under IBC, 2016 during the year under review.

SIGNIFICANT/MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS

There are no significant/ material orders passed by the Regulators/ Courts or Tribunals
impacting the going concern status of your Company and its operations in future.

INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IND AS)

Your Company’s financial statements for the year ended 315 March, 2022 are the financial
statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS notified under the Companies (Indian

Accounting Standards Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendments Rules, 2016 as applicable.

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Having regard to Rule 8 (5) (viii) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the details in
respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements
of the Company are as follows:

Your Company mainfains appropriate systems of internal control including monitoring
procedures. These internal control systems ensure reliable and accurate financial reporting,
safeguarding of assets, keeping constant check on cost structure and adhering to
management policies. The internal controls are commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of our operations and facilitate timely detection of any irregularities and early
remedial steps against factors such as loss from unauthorized use and disposition, Company
policies, guidelines and procedures provide for adequate checks and balances which are
meant to ensure that all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The
internal controls are continuously assessed and improved / modified to meet changes in
business conditions, statutory and accounting requirements.

Constant monitoring of the effectiveness of controls is ensured by periodical audits

performed by the external Internal Auditor viz., M/s Anil Aggarwal & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Chennai — 600 032,



The Audit Committee regularly meets and reviews the results of the various internal control
audits both with the Auditors as well as with the respective Auditees.

The Audit Committee is apprised of the findings as well as the corrective actions that are
taken. Periodical meetings between the Audit Committee and the Company Management

also ensure the necessary checks and balances that may need to be built into the control
system.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has comprehensive risk management policy to take care of the business and
other risks related to the Company. The Risk Management Policy of the Company maybe
accessed at the web-link: httpsi//hilchennai.com/uploadimages/190221130320HTL-
RiskManagementPolicy.pdf

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

As required under Section 177(%) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Meetings of Boards and its Powers) 2014, the Company has adopted a policy
on vigil mechanism / whistle blower. The policy provides direct access to the Chairman of
the Audit Committee in case any employee should choose to report or bring up a complaint.

Your Company affirms that no one has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and also that no complaints were received during the year.

The Policy on Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy may be accessed at the web-link:
htps://www.htllimited.com/uploadimages/060422 1443 [ 3WhistleBlowerPolicv-
VivilMechanism-HTL final.pdf.

PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The Company has a Committee to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment
in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees (permanent, contractual,

temporary and trainees) are covered under this system. No complaints were received during
the year under review.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Important factors that would make a difference to the Company’s operations/ future
prospects include demand supply conditions, raw material prices, changes in government

regulations, tax regimes and economic developments within the country and abroad and
such other factors.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year.
DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS

There were no such frauds which were reported by Auditors during the year, under Section
143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013,



COST RECORDS AND COST AUDIT

The Company is not required to maintain any cost records as specified in Section 148(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.,

Requirement of Cost Audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section 148 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company during the year under review.
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ANNEXURE - II TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Annual Report on CSR Activities for the Financial Year 2021- 22

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company have constituted the CSR committee and also approved the
CSR policy of Your Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014,

The CSR Committee has identified the following CSR activities, around which your Company shall
be focusing:

(1) Promoting preventive health care.

(ii) Sanitation and making available safe drinking water.
(iii)  Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition.

(iv)  Rural Development Projects.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. [Name of Director Designation / (Number of meetings Number of meetings of]
No. Nature of of CSR Committee CSR Committee
Directorship |held during the year| attended during the
year
1 [Dr. R M. Kastia Chairman 1 1
Shri K.C. Jani Member 1 1
3 [Shri Sharad Trivedi Member 1 !

1. The web-link where Composition of CSR commiitee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company.

The CSR Policy including the composition of CSR Committee has been placed on the website of the
Company. Members can access the same on the Company’s web site: www.htllimited.com

2. The details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of

the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report).
Not Applicable

3. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3} of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial

year, if any
SL. No. [Financial Year |[Amount available for set-off mount required to be set-off
from preceding financial years [for the financial year, if any (in
(in Rs) 8)
Nil

Total




4, Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).

The average net profits of the Company during the last three years is Rs. 43,03,01,740.12/-.

5. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5)
Rs. 86,06,035/-.

{b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years.
Not Applicable.

(¢} Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any
Not Applicable.
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c).
Rs. 86,06,035/-.
6. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year 2021-22:

Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Total Amount j1o¢41 Amount transferred to |[Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spent f_(’r the Unspent CSR Account as per under Schedule VII as per second proviso
Financial section 135(6). to section 135(5).
(Year. 2021-22
(in Rs.)
Amount, Date of |Name of the |Amount. Date of
transfer., |Fund transfer.
Nil 86,06,035 * Nil

*The Company has collaborated with Wockhardt Foundation for a CSR Project namely Mobile
Medical Unit to provide healthcare to needy people at Hosur at a cost of Rs. 51,50,550/- as approved
by CSR Committee on 22.3.2022 for its CSR obligation of FY 2021-22, Initially, a sum of
Rs. 46,54,460/- will be met out of the CSR obligation of the Company for the FY 2021-22 and the
residual amount of Rs. 4,96,090/- will be met out of CSR obligation of FY 2022-23.

Further, the Company will be appropriating an amount of Rs.39,51,575/- for the ongoing CSR project
at Chennai from its CSR obligation of the FY 2021-22.

Since the above mentioned CSR projects’ allocated funds are unspent, the said amount of
Rs. 86,06,035/- will be transferred to a separate bank Account viz., HTL Ltd- Unspent Corporate Social
Responsibility Account FY 2021-22 as stipulated in the Act.



(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(D (2) (3) 4 |5 6) (D 8) & an |dn
SI. [Name of the[ltem from [Local [Location of the [Projec|/Amount [Amoun [Amou [Mode of [Mode of
INo. [Project. the list of jarea [project. t allocated it spent nt Implem |[Implementation
activities (Yes/ durati [for the  fin the [transfeentation - Through
in No). on, [project (injcurrent [rred to Direct [Implementing
Schedule Rs.). financialUnspe (Yes/No)Agency
VII to the State. [District. 1 Year nt i Name (CSR
Act. (in Rs.) [CSR egistra
Accou Gion
nt for number.
the
project
as per
Section
135(6)
(in
Rs.).

1 |Mobile Promoting | Yes |[Tamil [Chennai |3yrs [1,05,00,0 |24,85,2|0%* No [Wockh [CSR000
Medical Preventiv Nadu 00 90 ardt {00161
Clinic ¢ Health - Founda

Care jtion
Total 1,05,00,00 24,85,2 0
0 90

**The amount of Rs. 40,63,135/- is available in the Bank account opened namely HTL Litd- Unspent
Corporate Social Responsibility Account. The residual amount of Rs. 39,51,575/- for the above approved
Project from the CSR Obligation of the company for the financial year 2021-22, will be appropriated from
the separate bank Account viz., HTL Ltd- Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility Account FY 2021-22
as stipulated in the Act.

(¢) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

@ 12) ) 4 ) (6) (7 @)
Sl. Name ({[tem L.ocal [Location of the Amount (Mode of Mode of
No. fof the [from the jarea [project. spent forimplementation - implementation -
Project [list of (Yes/ the Direct (Yes/No). [Through
activities [No). project implementing
in (in Rs.). agency.
schedule State. [District. Name. (CSR
VII to the registration
Act. number.
Nil
Total | [ | | | |

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads:- Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable:- Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (§b+8c+8d+8e):- Nil



(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:- Nil

SL No.|[Particular
(i) [Two percent of average net profit of the company as per
section 135(5)
(ii) [Total amount spent for the Financial Year
(iii) [Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)]
(iv) [Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or
(v)

Amount (in Rs.)

Nil
activities of the previous financial years, if any
Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years

[(ii)-(iv)]

(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

SL No.Preceding
Financial
Year.

Amount
spent in the
reporting
Financial
'Year (in Rs.).

Amount
transferred
to Unspent
CSR Account
under section
135 (6) (in
Rs.)

Amount
remaining
to be spent
in
succeeding
financial
years. (in
Rs.)
65,48,425%** | 24,85,290 - - - 40,63,135
. [2019-20 - - - - - -

3. [2018-19
Total

Amount transferred to any
fund specified under
Schedule VII as per section
135(6), if any.
Name of|]Amount
the (in Rs).
Fund

Date of
transfer.

1. [2020-21

24,85,290 - - - 40,63,135

***The Company has already transferred Unspent amount of Rs. 65,48,425 to the Unspent Corporate
Social Responsibility Account of the Company. The Company could transfer aforesaid amount on
4.5.2021 due to the circumstances of lock down prevailed because of pandemic of Covid-19 during

that time and the said delay of four days only was beyond the control of the Company and
unintentional.

65,48,425

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s):

(3) (4
Name of Financial
the 'Year in

Project. which the

(D (2)
Sl [Project
No.lID.

(5)
Project
daration,

(6)

Total
amount
allocated

(7)
Amount
spent on
the

(8)
Cumulative
amount
spent at the

(9)
Status of
the project

project was

commenced.

for the
project (in
Rs.).

project in
the
reporting
[Financial
'Year (in
Rs).

end of
reporting
Financial
Year. (in
Rs.)

Completed
Ongoing,.

Chennai

Mobile
Medical
Unit

2021-22

3 years

1,05,00,000

24,85,290

24,85,290

Ongoing

Total

1,05,00,000

24,85,290

24,85,290




In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or
acquired through CSR spent in the financial year:

(asset-wise details).

1. Mobile Medical Van- Force Motors Ltd. & Traveller T1 Ambulance.

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): 27.8.2021
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. Rs. 24,85,290/-

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is
registered, their address etc. Wockhardt Foundation, Wockhardt Towers, Bandra Kurla
Complex, Mumbai- 400 051.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location
of the capital asset). Mobile Medical Van- Force Motors Traveller. Wockhardt Foundation,
Flat 2A, No.11AE.Block 8 Street, Anna Nagar , Behind Anna Nagar Post Office, Chennai -
600 040. Location- Chennai

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5).

The CSR obligation of Rs. 86,06,035/- for FY 2021-22 will be transferred to the HTL Ltd- Unspent
Corporate Social Responsibility Account FY 2021-22 within the stipulated time as per the Act.

From the said bank account, a sum of Rs. 39,51,575/- will be appropriated for the CSR ongoing project
at Chennai and a sum of Rs. 46,54,460/- will be appropriated for the CSR Project at Hosur at a total

cost of Rs. 51,50,550/- entrusted to Wockhardt foundation on 30.3.2022 for implementation during FY
2022-23.

Shri K.C. Jani Dr.R.M.Kastia
Director Chairman of CSR Committee
DIN : 02535299 DIN: 00053059



Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2022
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

HTL Limited,

CIN: U93090TN1960PLC0O04355
G.5.T. Road, Guindy,

Chennai - 600032

| have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by HTL Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”} for the
year ended 31.03.2022. The Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, | hereby
report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31 March 2022 (‘Audit Period’), has complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-Processes and Compliance-Mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31% March 2022 according to the
provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; (Not
applicable during the Audit period).

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; (Not
applicable during the Audit period).

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings; (Not applicable during the Audit period).

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed: under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -



The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;(Not applicable during the Audit period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 1992; {Not applicable during the Audit period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable during the Audit
period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India. (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015(Not applicable during the Audit period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;(Not applicable during the
Audit period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable during the Audit period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client (Not applicable during the Audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009 (Not applicable during the Audit period).

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998
(Not applicable during the Audit period).

6. Labour Laws:

— xS T om o o0 oW

. The Factories Act, 1948

. Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

. Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948

The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970
The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

. The Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986

. The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946

m. The Employees’ Compensation Act, 1923

n.

Equal Remuneration Act, 1976



7. Environmental Laws:

a. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
b. The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
€. The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution} Act, 1981

Based on the representation given by the Management of the Company, it is observed that there are
no other laws which are specifically applicable to the business of the Company.

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company. (Not applicable during the Audit
period).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

I FURTHER REPORT THAT the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct
and indirect tax laws, has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to
review by statutory financial audit and other designated professionals.

| FURTHER REPORT THAT:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors

that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance excepting certain cases where notices
were sent less than seven days from the date of meetings and the Company subsequently
obtained the consent of the Directors for the shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and

obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

I FURTHER REPORT THAT there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.



I FURTHER REPORT THAT during the audit period, the Company had the following events which had

bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards etc;

1. Owing to the COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent to the intermittent lockdowns imposed by

the Government, the Company’s operations were adversely affected for the first quarter
April to June during the year under review.

2. The Company had obtained approval of Board of Directors for availing enhanced credit
facilities from Yes Bank to the extent of Rs. 173 Crores.

R. Balasubramanian Place: Chennai
Practising Company Secretary Date: 06.04.2022
FCS No. 10011, CP No. 11979

UDIN: FO10011D000026467

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an
integral part of this report.



To,

“Annexure A”

The Members,

HTL Limited,

CIN: US3090TN1960PLCO0DA355
G.S.T. Road, Guindy,

Chennai - 600032

| report that:

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

| have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of thecontents of the Secretarial records. The verification
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. |

believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.,

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future via bility of the Company

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

R. Balasubramanian Place: Chennai
Practising Company Secretary Date: 06.04.2022
FCS No. 10011, CP No. 11979

UDIN: F010011D000026467



Annexure 1V to the Directors’ Report

INFORMATION UNDER SECTION 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ

WITH COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 FOR THE YEAR ENDED
315T MARCH, 2022.

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

M

(i)

(i)

The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

The Company’s operation involves low energy consumption. Nevertheless, energy
conservation measures have already been taken wherever possible. Efforts to
conserve and optimise the use of energy through improved operational methods
and other means will continue.

The steps taken by the Company for utilising alternative sources of Energy:
The Company has purchased wind power from a private Generator, M/s, NSL
Wind Power Company (Phoolwadi) Private Limited, Hyderabad during the
previous year as per the guidelines prescribed by TANGEDCO for its both Guindy
and Hosur Plants.

The Company is also exploring the other alternative source of energy i.e. Solar.

The capital investment on energy conservation equipments: NIL

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The efforts made by the Company towards technology absorption:

The technology of the products has been absorbed substantially during the year
under review.

The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution:

As a result of technology absorption, Company has been able to reduce product
cost.

In case of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years reckoned

from the beginning of the financial year), the following information may be
furnished: NIL

{a) The details of Technology Imported : Not Applicable
(b) The year of Import : Not Applicable
(¢) Whether the technology been fully absorbed : Not Applicable

(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has : Not Applicable
not taken place and the reasons thereof and future
plans of action

The expenditure incurred on Research and Development (R&D): Nil



(C)FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Financial Financial
Year ended Year ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Foreign exchange earned in terms of actual inflows. 882.38 1215.80

Foreign exchange outgo in terms of actual outflows. 14216.18 5739.95

For and on behalf of the Board

MAHENDRA NAHATA
CHAIRMAN
DIN : 00052898



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of HTL Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of HTL Limited (“the Company”),
which comprise the Standalone Balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and
Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone Financial

Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as the “standalone financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and profit

(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We belicve

that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

8. No | Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response
1. Provision of Interest on Government of India Principal Audit Procedures
(GOI) Loan

Pending the response to the company’s letter to | Obtained details of correspondence with
GOI and also non-confirmation of balance from | Government of India for settlement of
GOI, provision of interest on GOI loan has been | claim.  Verified the reconciliation
made after adjustment of claim recoverable from | statement prepared by the management
BSNL. As on 31* March 2022, total loan | after adjustment of claim recoverable from
outstanding is Rs. 624.20 Lacs and Interest | BSNL against the interest portion of the
Accrued is Rs. 2774.05 Lacs. outstanding loan from GOI.,




Oswal Sunil & Company
Charterad Accounianis Continuation Sheet

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s

report thereon. The other information comprising the above documents is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information comprising the above documents, if we conclude that there is a
material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance and take necessary actions as per applicable laws and regulations.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statement
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless board of directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:



Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountanis Continuation Sheet

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control,

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial conirols relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evalvate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the standalone financial statements made by management and
Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the relaied disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (3]
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
A. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give

in the “Annexure-A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent possible.

B. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books. )

(¢c) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including other
comprehensive income, the Standalone Statement of Cash flows and the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder.

(2) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the company has paid/provided managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of
the Act read with Schedule V of the Act. '

{h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2022 on its
financial position in its Standalone Financial Statements — Refer Note No 39 to the Standalone
Financial Statements;

ii) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts;

iif) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company, '
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iv)
(a) The Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (*“Ultimate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds (which are material either individually
or in aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{c) Based on our audit procedure conducted that are considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause us to believe that the
representation under subclause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11 (e) as provided under paragraph (B) (h)
(iv) (a) & (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v) Since the Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, the question of
commenting on whether dividend declared or paid is in accordance with Section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013 does not arise.

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016520N

Nishant Bhansali

Partner

Membership No: 532900

UDIN: 22532900AICMUH4729

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 25, 2022
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in “Paragraph-A” under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report to the Members of HTL Limited of even date)

(a)

1.

(a)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situations of its Property Plant and Equipment.
B. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its Intangjible Assets.

(b) Property, Plant and equipment of the company are physically verified according to a phased
program of coverage which, in our opinion, is reasonable. Pursuant to the program, physical
verification of the Property, Plant and equipment was carried out during the year by the
management and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us, the title deeds of all immovable
properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company except the
following:

| Deseription | . . | Heldin | promoter,director | e | Reason for not heing held
-of Property | Value I nameof | ortheir f@;iatwe or | range; )Ile_x,e { innameofthe company

i = _employee | 4ppropriate S
30.99 acres Re. 1 Government No 51 Years Pattas and Encumbrance

of Assigned of Certificate are available in
land at Tamilnadu the name of Company and

Guindy the process of getting clear

Industrial title is in process. The
Area, Assigned land is subject to
Chennai dispute pending at Madras
High Court. Refer Note 44

to the Financial Statement.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of records examined
by us, the Company has neither revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment nor its
Intangible Assets during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(1)(d) of the Order is not
applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, no proceedings have been initiated or
ar¢ pending against the company for holding any benami property under Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

2.

As per the information and explanation given to us, the Inventories, except for stocks lying with
certain third parties from whom confirmations have been obtained for stocks held as at the year
end, have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals during the year. In
our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate. In
our opinion, the discrepancies noticed on physical verification were less than 10% in aggregate for
each class of inventory and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.
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(b) As disclosed in note 23 to the financial statements, the company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of
current assets. As per the information and explanation given to us, the quarterly returns or
statements filed by the company with banks are materially in agreement with the books of
accounts of the Company and there are no significant deviations.

3. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not made investments in or
provided any guarantee or secutity or granted any loans or advances in nature of loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, limited Hability partnerships or any other parties. Hence, provision of
clause 3(iii) are not applicable to the Company.

4. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records, the Company has not made any investments, given any loans, guarantees, or security which

attracts compliance of section 185 and section 186 of Companies act. Accordingly, Clause 3(iv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

5. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits,
within the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or

any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Hence the provisions of clause 3(v) are not
applicable to the Company.

6. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed

the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act,2013 for
the products of the company,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and records examined by us, the
Company is generally regular in depositing, with the appropriate authorities, undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax,
sales tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues wherever applicable. According to information and explanation given to us, and as per the

records examined by us, no undisputed arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at 31% March, 2022
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and as certified by the management,
details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above, which have not been deposited on
account of disputes as on March 31, 2022 and the forum where the dispute is pending are given

below :
Nameof the N; | Amonntin | Periodto-which the | Forum where dispute is
Statute  f  dues | Rs, | amountreélates |  pending :
The Income Tax , Appeal before ITAT,
Act 1961 Income Tax 4731 Lacs AY 2014-15 Dethi

8. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously

unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.
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(a) According to our audit procedures and the information and explanation given to us, the company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings. or in payment of interest to any lender
except the non-repayment of the loans and interest due thereon to Government of India (GOI). The
period and amount of such default as on balance sheet date i.e. 31% March, 2022 are as follows:

Amount. in Lacs

- borrowing:

 Natureor | Neme | Amountnot | Whefher
voreowing | OF | paidomdue | principal or

| Deliy orinpaid. |
Cdender | date | dnferest B

‘Renarks

624.20 Principal More than 8 year | As referred in Note 46 of the
1768.04 More than 8 year | Financial Statement, loan &

300.42 6-8 Year interest due thereon are
Loans GOI 352.94 3-6 Year subject to reconciliations
150.21 Intefest 2-3 Year and  interest reduction

84.88 1-2 Year proposal with Department of
117.55 0-1 Year Telecommunications (DoT).

Total 3398.25

{b) To the best of our knowledgé and belief and according to the information and explanations given

to us, the Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or any other lender.

(¢} To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the terms loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were abtained.

(d) To the best of our knowledge and belicf and according to the information and explanations given

to us, the fund raised on short term basis, prima facie, have not been utilized for the long term
purposes.

{e) In our opinion, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and

accordingly the requirements under paragraph 3(ix)(e) and 3(ix)(f) are not applicable to the
company.

10.

(a) Based on our examinations of the records and information and explanations given to us, the

company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer (TPO) or further public offer
(FPO) (including debt instruments).

(b) Based on our examinations of the records and information and explanations given to us, the

company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures during the year.

11.

(a) To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the company or on the company has been noticed or reporied during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination, there
were no whistle-blower complaints received during the year by the Company;
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12.

3.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

The Company is not a Nidhi company, hence the provisions of clause 3(xii) are not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us-and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and
188 of Companies Act 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion, the company has adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of the business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures,

According to the information and explanation given to us and the books of accounts verified by us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected with him
and hence the provision of clause 3(xv) are not applicable to the Company.

(2) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities requiring it to have a

Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, '

(b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Group has no
CIC as part of the Group.

The company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilifies
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.
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(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the company has transferred unspent amount to a special account,
within a period of thirty days from the end of the financial year in compliance with section 135(6)
of the said Act, except in respect of the following:

Financial |  Amount unspenton Amount Transferred fo. | Aniount Transferred

Year | Corporate Social | Special Accountwithin | after the-ducdate
| Responsibility activities for | 30days from the'end of | (specify thedate of
| “Ongoing Projects” |  the Financial Year __ {transfer)

2020-21 Rs. 65,48,425 ) 04/05/2021

The company has not transferred the amount remaining unspent for FY 2021-22 in respect of
ongoing projects, to a Special Account till the date of our report. However, the time period for
such transfer i.e. thirty days from the end of the financial year as permitted under the sub-section
(6) of section 135 of the Act, has not elapsed till the date of our report.

21. The Company does not have any subsidiary, associates or joint ventures and hence reporting under
clause 3 (xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016520N

Nishant Bhansali

Partner

Membership No: 532900

UDIN: 22532900ATCMUHA4729

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 25, 2022
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF HTL LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED
MARCH 31, 2022.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph B(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

TO THE MEMBERS OF HTL LIMITED

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of HTL LIMITED (“the

Company”) as of March, 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the guidance note on Audit of Internal financial control
over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the-orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and €rT0rS,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act™).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on audit of Internal financial controls over financial reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those standards and the guidance note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate Internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting,
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- Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company: (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matetial misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opiniomn, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,

For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016520N

Nishant Bhansali

Partner

Membership No: 532900

UDIN: 22532900AI1CMUH4729

Place: New Delhi
Date: April 25, 2022



HTL Limited

(CIN: T793090TN1960PL.C004355)
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2022

Assets March 31, March3l,
_ 2022 .. 202%
Non-current Assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 12,475.36 11,221.63

(b} Capital work-in-progress 5 2,11598 808.34

(c) Intangible assets (other than Goodwill) 6 59.90 69.49

(d) Intangible assets under development 7 18.36 15.68

(e} Financial Assets

(i) Others 8 422,67 265.84

(f) Deferred tax Assets (Net) 9 = .

(g) Other non-curreni assets 10 467.93 236.87
Fotal non-current assets 15,560.20 12,617.85
Current Assets

{a) Inventories 11 16,385.64 12,772.32

(b) Financial Assets

(i} Investments 12 17.08 17.08
(if) Trade Receivables 13 17,217.76 18,538.70
(ifi) Cash & cash equivalents 14 65.83 29.68
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 15 2,217.20 1,015.72
{(v) Others 16 44789 347.20

(¢} Current Tax Assets (Net) 17 5 =

(d) Other current assets i3 947.00 809.12
Tehlpicenbasiti==7 - 70 T 37,298.40 33,529.82

- 52,858.60 46,147.67




HTL Limited

(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC004355)
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2022

o3 3 AS.a
Eq_ti_iiy,,mfd{liiabiﬁﬁ@s-: | Note No. M::-d:;i,,
2021
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 19 1,500.00 1,500.00
(b) Other Equity 19 6,377.31 1,485.76
Total Equity 7,871.31 2,985.76
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 20 5,042.98 7,784.00
(if) Others 21 7,200.00 7,200.00
(b} Provisions 22 139.17 405.32
(¢) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 9 371.62 397.50
Eotal non-current liabilities = i 12,753.77 15,786.82
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 8,951.37 5,948.69
(ii) Trade Payables
(a) tota! outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 1.352.61 1.399.65
enterprises; and 24 i U
(b) totzl outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 17.006.99 18.754.81
enterprises and small enterprises. . o
(iii) Other financial liabilities 25 3,756.97 523.52
(b) Other current liabilities 26 193.46 313.75
() Provisions 27 34,02 3131
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 17 932.10 403.36
Total currentliabilities e e 32,221.52 27,375.09
JotalLighiites =~ 0 44,981.29 43,161.91
Total equityand liabiliies ~—~ 52,858.60 46,147.67
The Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Oswal Sunil & Company
.Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 0165206N MAHENDRA NAHATA R. MLKASTIA
Chairman Director
DIN: 00052898 DIN: 00053059
NISHANT BHANSAILI
Partner
M.No.: 532900 5. NARAYANAN C D PONNAPPA
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
M.No ACS5772 PAN: ACZPP1337Q

New Delhi, 25th April 2022

New Delhi, 25th April 2022



HTL Limited
(CIN: U93090TN1966PLC004355)
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs,)

Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31,2022

= | For.the year ended | For the year ended |
Particulaxs NoteNo. | “March31; ~ March3t,
1 : 22022 .. 2021
1. |INCOME
Revenue from operations 28 1,01,004.70 64,303.93
Other Income 29 276,16 374.17
_|TotalIncome (I i 1,01,280.86 64,678.10
11. {EXPENSE
Cost of Material Consumed 30 76,771.70 47,986.24
Other Direct cost 31 1,023.34 584.76
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 4,060.10 3,513.11
gtl:ir;g-::;j?r:;\:ntor1es of finished goods, Work in-progress and 32 (L,510.11) (2,002.04)
Employee benefits expense 33 4,546,12 3,298.54
Finance Costs 34 3.444.43 2,698.57
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 4&6 2,045.99 1,433.89
Other Expenses 35 3,612.18 2,624.83
 {Tofal Expenses:(i1). it 93,993,75 60,137.90
III Profit / (loss) before exceptional items and income tax (I-11) 7,287.11 4,540.20
IV |Exceptional item 33 637.67 -
¥ [Profit/ (Loss) before tax (I - 1) = 6,649.44 4,540.20

/)



HTL: Limited

(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC004355)
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

: | For'the year ended | For
Particulars | NoteNo,. Marchidl,
' 2022
VI |Tax expenses
Current tax 1,735.99 1,007.94
Deferred Tax (20.29) 708.68
1,715.70 1,716.62
VII |Profit for the year (V-VI) 4,933.74 2,823.58
VI Other Comprehensive Income / (loss)
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit.or loss
{i) Remeasurement of defined benefit plans; (22.22) 3590
{ii) Income tax on above item; 5.59 (9.04)
_|Other comprehensive income for the year (VIID (16.63) 26.86
X [Total comprehensive income for the.year (VIFVIED 4,917.11 2,850.44
Earnings per share attributable to the equity holders of the
Company during the vear
Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 36 328.92 188.24
Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 36 328.92 188,24
The Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial staternent.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 016520N
MAHENDRA NAHATA R. MLKASTIA
Chairman Director

NISHANT BHANSALI
Partner
M.No.: 532900

New Delhi, 25th April 2022

DIN: 00052898 DIN: 00053059

S. NARAYANAN
Company Secretary

M.No ACS5772

New Delhi, 25th April 2022

C D PONNAPPA
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: ACZPP1337Q



HTL Limited

(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC004355)

(All amounts ar¢ Rs in Lakhs,)

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2022

 Pirticulari: Fortheyearended | For the year ended
el o Mar31,2022 Marsh 31,2021
I.  |Cash Flow From Operating Activities .
Net Profit Before Tax 6,649.44 4,540.19
Adjustments for
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 2,045.99 1,433.89
Excess provision written back - (104.68)
Bad debts, Loans and Advances, other balances written off (net) 40.84 25.09
Loss on Sales/Jiscard of Property, Plant and Equipment 10.51 0.17
Share based payment {refer note no. 48) (25.55) 18.02
Finance costs 3,444.43 2,698.57
Interest Income _(93.81) (92.49)
Exchange Fluctuation Income (Net) 295.03 (13.08)
12,366.88 8,505.68
Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables 1,280.10 (6,596.79)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (3,613.32) (5,786.30)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (2,089.89) 9,754.58
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (78,50) 41.11
{Increase)/Decrease in other Non-current assets (156.83) 314.79
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets (1,339.36) (146.55)
Increase/(Decrease) in other Non-current liabilities (266.15) 27.30
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities {(61.31) (22.84)
Cash generated from operations 6,041.62 5,490.98
Income taxes (paid)/refund (1,207.25) (546.51)
__|Netenshiuflow from-operating activities 4,834.37 4,944.47
Il |Cash flows from investing activities
Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment including CWIP & Capital (4,513.50) (4,060.87)
Advances
Payment for Intangible Assets (other than Goodwill) including CWIP (12,30} (36.49)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 12.17 -
Payments for purchase of investments - (6.92)
Interest received 71.62 57.94
_[Net cash putflow froni investing activities {4,442.51) (4,006.34)




HTL Limited

(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC004355)

(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs,)

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2022

R. MLKASTIA
Director
DIN: 00053059

“Particulars. Far the ﬁyeér@flm Fﬂrnﬁum e ea#gg'd_ed
e Mar31,2022 March 31,2021
I |Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds of borrowings 3,945.89 1,979.29
{(Repayment) of borrowings (1,027.73) (449.80)
Interest paid (3.273.88) (2,645.94)
‘| Net-eash inflow {outllow) from Ginarcing activities (355.72) (1,116.45)
_ XV |Netinerease (decreise) i cash and.cash equivalents 36.15 (178.32)
VI [Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 2968 208.00
. MIF [Gashand eash equivaléntiatend of theyear - 65.83 29.68
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 14) comprise of the following
Cash on Hand 1.02 1.13
Balance with Banks * © 64.81 28.55
* Rs.40.63 Lakhs { Previous year Rs.NIL) has restricted use.
Balances per statement of cash flows 65.83 29.68
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board
For Oswal Sunil & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 016520N
MAHENDRA NAHATA
Chairman
DEN: 00052898
NISHANT BHANSALI
Partner 5. NARAYANAN
M.No.: 532900 Company Secretary
M.No ACS5772

New Delhi, 25th April 2022

New Delhi, 25th April 2022

C D PONNAPPA
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: ACZPP1337Q
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HTL Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
(Ali amounts are in Rs. Lakh unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

HTL Limited (“the Company”) was a wholly owned undertaking of Government of India ('GOI’) under the Department
of Telecommunications (‘DOT’) till 16 October'2001 when the Government divested 74 % of its shareholding in the
Company as part of its divestment program, including transfer of management control, to HFCL Limited, which is now

the Holding Company. From 2015-16, the Company has started manufacturing Optical Fibre Cables and Passive
Connectivity Sclution.

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 25t April 2022

2. Application of new and revised Ind -AS
All the Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies

{Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the
extent applicable have been considered in preparing these financial statements.

Recent accounting proncuncements:-

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules 2022, applicable from April 01, 2022 are Ind AS 103 -
Reference to Conceptual Framework, Ind AS 16 — Proceeds from intended use, Ind AS 37 — Oraneous Contracts — Cost
of fulfilling a Contract, Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021). The Company does not expect the
amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statement.

3. Significant accounting policies
3.1, Basis of preparation

3.1.1. Compliance with Ind AS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to
as “Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time. The Company has consistently applied accounting policies
to all periods. On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) thraugh a notification, amended
Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013 and the amendments are applicable for financial periods commencing

from April 1, 2021. The Company has evaluated the effect of the amendments on its financial statements and
complied with the same.

3.1.2. Historical Cost Convention
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the followings:

® certain financial assets and liabilities and contingent consideration that is measured at fair value;
* assets held for sale measured at fair value less cost to sell;
e defined benefit plans plan assets measured at fair value; and

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

The Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees Lakhs except where otherwise stated.



3.1.3. Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of
Ind AS requires the management of the Company to make estimates and judgements that affect the reported
balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of income and expense for the periods presented.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected

3.2, Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset
is treated as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period other than for (a) above, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

a) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
b} Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading, or
c} Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period other than for (a) above, or

d) Thereis no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

3.3. Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data

are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of
unobservable inputs.

The Company categorizes assets and liabilities measured at fair value into one of three levels as follows:



3.4.

3.5.

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted)

This hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices induded within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 2 inputs include the following:

a) quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.
b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.

¢) inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.
d} Market — corroborated inputs. ’

Level 3

They are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable related market
data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants. Fair values are determined in whole or in part

using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market
transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount
and fair value less casts to sell.

Property Plant and Equipment

Freehold Land is carried at the actual cost. All other items of PPE are stated at actual cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss. Actual cost is inclusive of freight, installation cost, duties, taxes and other incidental
expenses for bringing the asset to its working conditions for its intended use (net of eligible input taxes) and any cost

directly attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by the Management.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date and

the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital
advances and capital work-in-progress {CWIP) respectively.

Significant Parts of an item of PPE (including major inspections) having different useful lives & material value or other

factors are accounted for as separate components. All other repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss as incurred. o

Depreciation of these PPE commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is provided for on Buildings (including buildings taken on lease) and Plant & Machinery on straight line
method and on other PPE on written down value method on the basis of useful life. On assets acquired on lease

(including improvements to the leasehold premises), amortization has been provided for on Straight Line Method
over the primary period of lease.

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed on an anriual basis and if necessary, changes in estimates
are accounted for prospectively. '



Depreciation on subsequent expenditure on PPE arising on account of capital improvement or other factors is
provided for prospectively over the remaining useful life.

The useful life of property, plant and equipment are as follows:-

‘Asset Class = | Useful Life :
Freehold Buildings* Factory Building : 20 years
) Staff Quarters : 40 years

Leasehold Improvements Over the period of lease

Plant & Machinery 7.5-15Years

Furniture & Fixtures 10 years

Electrical Installations 10 years

Computers 3 —6years

Office Equipments 5 years

Vehicles : 8 years

*For these classes of assets based on internal assessment and technical evaluation, the management belleves that
the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the Management expects to use these assets.

Hence the useful lives for these assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of
Companies Act 2013,

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets
or over the shorter of the assets useful life and the lease term if there is an uncertainty that the company will obtain
ownership at the end of the lease term.

An item of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of PPE is determined as

the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

3.6. Intangible Assets

(i) Intangible assets

Recognition of intangible assets
a. Computer software

Purchase of computer software used for the purpose of operations is capitalized. However, any expenses on

software support, maintenance, upgrade etc. payable periodically is charged to the Statement of Profit &
Loss.

De-recognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss when the asset is derecognized.



3.7.

Amortisation periods and methods

Intangible assets are amortised on straight line basis over a period ranging between 2-5 years which equates its
economic useful life.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

3.7.1. Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame are recognized on the trade date, i.e.,
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories based on business
maodel of the entity:

Debt instruments at amortized cost -

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCI)
Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FvTOCI)

O 0 0 O

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a} The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR} method.

Debt instrument at FVTOC!

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOC! if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OC!). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On
derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCl is reclassified from the equity to
P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FYTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.



Debt instrument at FVTPL

Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categbrization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC|, is
classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed onlyif doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement

or recognition inconsistency {referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt
instrument as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
P&L.

Equity investments

All equity investments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable
election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value.

The Company ‘makes such election on an instrument by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. This amount is not recycled from OCl to P & L, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless they are measured at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to

the acquisition of finandal assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the P&L.

De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is de-recognized only when

@ The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the Company has transferred an asset, it evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognized.

Where the Company has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Group has not retained control of the
financial asset. Where the Group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to
the extent of continuing involvemnent in the financia! asset.



Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. In determining the
allowances for doubtful trade receivables, the Company has used apractical expedient by computing the expected
credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account
historical credit loss experience and is adjusted for forward looking information. For all other financial assets,
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-months expected credit losses or at an amount

equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition, '

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss {P&L).

3.7.2 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Initiol recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are
classified as fair value through profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Finandial

liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial
period which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due

within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using

the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortization process.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of

the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount
recognized less cumulative amortization.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.



3.8. Impairment of non-financial assets

3.9.

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. ’
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of thase from other assets or groups of assets,

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired
and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

A previously recognized impairment loss {except for goodwill) is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited to the carrying amount of the asset.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

Raw materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on Weighted Average Cost Method.

Finished goods and work in progress: Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of

manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
deterrined on Standard Cost method.

Traded goods: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

Contract Work in Progress : It is valued at cost

Loose Tools {Consumables) 1t is Vaulted at cost after write off at 27.82%

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.



=

3.10. Revenue recognition

Sale of Goods

The company recognizes revenue in accordance with Ind- AS 115. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of
promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration that the Company expects
to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (which may also refer as unbilled revenue) while
invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities {which may also refer to as unearned revenues).

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and loss.

Interest income
Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the interest rate
applicable. Interest income is included under the head “other income” in the statement of profit and loss.

Rental income
Rental income arising from operating leases or on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms and is included in other non-operating income in the statement of profit and loss.

B Insurance Claims
Insurance claims are accounted for as and when admitted by the concerned authority.

3.11, Excise and custom duty _
Excise duty payable on production is accounted for on accrual basis. Provision is made in the hooks of accounts
for customs duty on imported items on arrival and lying in bonded warehouse and awaiting clearance.

3.12, Leases

As a lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company
assesses whether:
i.  the contract involves the use of an identified asset
iil.  the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of
the lease and
fii.  the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”} and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve
months or less {(short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the Initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.



3.13.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straightline basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose
of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use)
is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent

of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit {CGU)
to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a

corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

As a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance
lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sublease

separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset arising
from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the economic
environment in which it operates.

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency {foreign currencies) are recognized at the
rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at

the year end and not covered under forward exchange contracts are translated at the functional currency spot rate
of exchange at the reporting date.

Any incame or expense on account of exchange difference between the date of transaction and on settlement or
on translation is recognized in the profit and loss account as income or expense.

Non monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates

at the date when the fair value was determined. Trans!ation difference on such assets and liahilities carried at fair
value are reported as part of fair value gain or loss.

3.14. Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits:-

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12



months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the balance

sheet.

Long-Term employee benefits

Compensated expenses which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of period in which the

employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date.

Post-employment obligations

Defined contributicn plans
Provident Fund and employees’ state insurance schemes

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined
contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a
predetermined rate {presently 12%) of the employees’ basic salary. These contributions are made to the
fund administered and managed by the Government of India. In addition, some employees of the Company
are covered under the employees’ state insurance schemes, which are also defined contribution schemes
recognized and administered by the Government of India.

The Company’s contributions to both these schemes are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its monthly contributions.

Defined benefit Gratuity plan

The Company provides for gratuity obligations through a defined benefit retirement plan {the ‘Gratuity
Plan’} covering all employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement or termination of employment based on the respective employee salary and years of
employment with the Company. The Company provides for the Gratuity Plan based on actuarial valuations
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 19 (revised), “Employee Benefits“. The Company makes
periodic contributions to the HDFC Standard Life Insurance Company Ltd for the Gratuity Plan in respect of
employees. The present value of obligation under gratuity is determined based on actuarial valuation using
Project Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee henefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Defined retirement benefit plans comprising of gratuity, un-availed leave, post-retirement medical benefits
and other terminal benefits, are recognized based on the present value of defined benefit obligation which
is computed using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end

of each annual reporting period. These are accounted either as current employee cost or included in cost of
assets as permitted. '

Leave Encashment

The company has provided for the liability at period end on account of un-availed earned leave as per
the actuarial valuation as per the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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lii Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in OCI as and when incurred.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit

obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the
statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest as defined above),are recoghized in
other comprehensive income except those included in cost of assets as permitted in the period in which
they occur and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Financial Statements represents the actual deficit or
surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to

the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of reductions in future contributions to
the plans,

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.15. Share-based compensation
The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as an
employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees unconditionally
become entitled to the awards. The amount recognised as expense is based on the estimate of the number of
awards for which the related service and non-market vesting conditions are expected to be met, such that the

amount uitimately recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do meet the related service
and non-market vesting conditions at the vesting date.

3.16. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, canstruction or production of qualifying asset

are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

3.17. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.



Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless possibility of
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit is remote.

3.18. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

3.19. GST Credit

The GST credit available on purchase of raw materials, other eligible inputs and capital goods Is adjusted against
taxes payable. The unadjusted GST/CENVAT credit is shown under the head “Other Current Assets”.

3.20. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after
tax by the welghted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also

the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

3.21. Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses, if any.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Financial Statement. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from Initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates {and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted

by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are recognized

only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and
losses.

Deferred tax liabilities are not recognized for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where the Company

is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
wili not reverse in the foreseeable future.



Deferred tax assets are not recognized for tem porary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in subsidiaries, associates and interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable that the
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will not be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when thereis a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Dividend distribution tax paid on the dividends is recognized consistently with the presentation of the
transaction that creates the income tax consequence.

3.22. Exceptional tems

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary
activities, which are non-recurring and are of such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is
considered necessary to explain the performance of the Company.,
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HTL Limited
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)
Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

8 Non-Current Financial Assets - Others

Parficilars

Unsecured, considered Good

Fixed Deposits with Bank (Maturity more than 12 months)* 422.67 265.84
Total e e Her e ey 268,54

*Above fixed deposit held as margin money/securities with banks,

9 Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)

e BroughtRorwird Tossedt ]  Dfincd Benefit. e
Earticalati: - Tnabsorbed Depreciation | ‘Obligations/Provisioiis & Tomb o
As at 1 April, 2020 1,141.95 13927 (961.01) 32021
{Changed)/Credited:

- to Statement of profit and loss (1,141.95) (17.49) 450.77 708,67y
- to other comprehensive income o - (9.04) = (9.04)
Ag at 31 March, 2021 <] 112.74 (510.24) {397.50)
(Changed)/Credited: -
- to Statemnent of profit and loss - {76.84), 97.14 20.29
- to other comprehensive income - 5.59] - 5.59
As e 3 Miiehi 2022 e e e e e T o AT sian e
I{t Other nou-current assets
Parsiclars
Unsecured, Considered Good
Capital Advances
ot
11 Inventuries (af cost or net realisable value whichever is lower)
Rl =
Inventories (As certified and valued by the management)
Raw Material 8,152.56 6,683.84|
Raw Material-En transit 1,393.61 1,017.00]
9,546.18 7,761,834
Work-in-progress 2,772.34 1,364.99
Finished goods 3,261.66 3,182.50
Stock-in-trade Goods 110.22 8713
Stores & Spares 6638.87 42245
Loose tools’ 25,86 14.41
Fotal e T 163856} TiAmay
12 Current Financial Assets - Investmenis
foacitrs _
Unguoated Investments
Envestments in Equity instrument
[osat” : .

12.1 Details of Current Financial Assets - Investments
Partigalars
Financial assets measured at FYTOCI
Investment in equily instruments
Uneuoted Equity Shares (Fully Paid up)

NSL Wind Pawer Compasty {Phoclwadi) Private Limited - Face Value Rs. 104 170,795 17.08 1,70,795 17.08

per share

Total Investment FYTOCE 17.08 17.08
= & -




HTL Limited
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

13 Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables

El’{arl;ieui'are

Trade Receivables - Considered Good Unsecured
Less: Expected Credit Loss atlowance

1721776

Total

wnTEet

13.1. Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule:

i _ i _ (.‘ tstanding for l‘nlewing periods fn? due date of payment _

B Pascidind Noios | Mestuns |aMosetT oL Mgean | VoI gy

As at March 31, 2022

(3) Undispuied Trade Receivables - considered goad 10,860.31 3,676.96 2,170.t1 479.79 10.62 995 17,207.75

() Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - E - - - 10.61 10.01

Tiital, ' : S . Aogenst 3676961 T TigdE B N
As at March 31, 2621

(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered sood 14,653.22 315759 1752 20.1 1L26 - 18,528.69

(is) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - 10.01 10.01

B S s W7z Gnsran) Tohip iesmm

13.2 The credit period towards trade receivables generally ranges between 0 to 180 days

and certain retention money within 180 Days.

13.3 In determining the allowance for trade receivables the Company has used practical exp:

over-dues, availability of coliaterals and historical experience of collections from customers. The concentration
customers are Government and large Corporate organisations though there may be normal delays in collections.

13.4 Above balance of frade receivables include recoverable from related party. {Refer note no 49)

14 Current Financial Assets - Cash & cash equivalents

Hearticoiars

Cash & Cash Equivalenis
Balance with banks;
- in current account

24.18 28.55
- in CSR Unspent account * 40,63 -
Cash on hand, 1.02 1.13
Toal 5 R ~ Boiig
*Rs5.40.63 Lakhs { Previous year Rs.NIL) has restricted use.
15 Current Financial Assets - Other Bank Balances
b i = Agap S
Pavticuins March31,2023; seel 319021
Fixed Deposits with Bank
A 2217.20 1,615.72
(Maturity more than 3 Months but less than 12 months) *

Tatal.

Fatiaef T

*Above fixed deposit held as margin money/securities with banks.

16 Current Financial Assets -Qther Assets

[Parifeinlars

Unsecured, Considered good
A} Advances other than capital advances;

a.) Security Deposits 252.26 173.76
b,) Other Advances 150.00 150.00
B} Interest Receivables 45.64 23.44
Total : . ARl T o 37|

Current Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Fearticutars

Income Tax Provisions (net of Advance Tax & TDS/TCS)

{932.10)

(403.36)

[Ental:

DL Y A

0336

. General payment terms includes process time with the respective customers between 30 to 60 days

edients based on financial condition of the customers, ageing of the customer receivables and
of risik with respect to trade receivables is reasonably low as most of the



HTL Limited
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)
Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

18 Other Current Assets

b — - T T s TS
Eartiabe D N e Margh 359038
Unsecured, Considered good
Advances Recoverable in cash or in kind 2.62 1.47
Advances to Vendors 387.95 27286
Indirect Tax Recoverable 29802 113.90
Prepaid Expenses 21938 341.43
Expor Incentive Receivable 36.04 79,46
ol B o e m i B = 7S B PR

19 (a} Equity Share Capital

(i) Authorized Share Capital

“Particutars : R S T T ] Amgui
As at March 31, 2020 26,00,000 2,0040.80
Increase during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 20,090,080 2,000,860
Increase dusing the vear - -
Ag at March 31, 2022 20,00,000 2,000.90
{ii} Shares issued, subscribed and fully paid-up
Movement in Equity Share Capital

FEmen " Parficolars " Noofhares . ’1 Amount
As at March 31, 2020 15,00,000 1,500.00
Add: Shares issued during the year - -
As at March 31, 2021 15,00,006 1,500.00
Add: Shares issued duning the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 15,00,000 1,500.00

(ii§) 11,10,000 (Previous year-11,10,000) Equity Shares of Rs, 100/~ each are fully paid up, are held by the Holding Company, HFCL
Limited

{iv) Sharcholders holding more than § percent of Equity Shares

amieof Sharehiolder

HFCL Lienited

% of Holding b 74.00%
Manoj Baid* 1 1
Baburaj Eradath* 1 1
Tarun Kalra* 1 1
Govt. of India represented by President of India 3,858,996 3,839,996
% of Holding 26.00% 26.60%
Shri Shambhu Kumar Mahto, DDG (PHP), DoT. 2 2
Shri R M Agarwal, DDG (SU), DoT. ] t
Shri Rajeev Kumar Srivastava, Director (TPF), DoT. ¥ 1

{v) Shareholding of Promoters

‘Bhnresheld by proinoters stithe fnd of

ESNo: Promoter Name . . . " No,of Shiaves | ¢ i-of Toiat Shares |
i HFCL Limited 3,89,995
2 | Manoj Baid* 1
74.00% 0%
3 [ Baburaj Eradath* 1 ) ¢
4 | Terun Kaira* 1

* The Beneficial Interest is held by HFCL Limited, Holding Company.

(b) Other Equity

Prrtlcilars T e i satMarchiol 207 FA

(i) Capital Reserve 0.00

(i1) Retained Earnings 6,459.38 1,501.18
(iii) Other Comprehensive Income -Remeasurement of Defned Benefit Plans (106.70} {90.07)
(iv) Share based payment to employees * 24,63 74.65
{Total SR e G| 76

*Share based Payment related to ESOPs and RSU's granted by the holding company to the employees of HTL (Ref Note No.48)




HTL Limited
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(#) Capifal Reserve =

Particulats AsatMarch31,2023 | Aval Mareh 31, 2021
Opening Balance 0.00 Q.00
Increase during the year S =
Decrease during the year - =

[ Gloging Balance. : 260 ]

* Capital Reserve of Re. 1/~ represents amount paid for land acquired free of cost from Tamilnadu State Government.

(ii) Retained Earnings

Parttenlars ~AsatMarch 3L,205% ] Asat March 31,9021
Opening Balance 1,501.18 (1,322.40)
Add; Net profit for the year 4,933,714 282358
Add: Transferred from Share based payment reserve 24 46 -
Clésing Balance J== . 6489384 . U Uyssiis
{iii) Other Comprehensive tncome -Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan
T _AwaiMirdiaf, 2027 | AssfMarn 12001 |
Opening Balance (50.07) {116.93)
Increase during the year - 26.86
Decrease during the year (16.63) -
Closiug Balanew' . 77 i e
(iv) Share based payment to Employees

waEMargh 31,2023 T As ngMarchd1, 3020 |
Opening Balance 74.65 56.62
Increase during the vear - 18.02
Decrease during the year {25.55) -
Transferred to Retained Eamings {24.46) -
T R e e oy s 5 IR

¢) Loan from related party*

Non-Current Fingncial Liabilities - Borcowings
= Wy e e e G Fr peery
il L Meavimr | e
Borrowings
a) Term Loans from Banks (Secured) 2,592,908 2,053.31
b} Loans from Govt. of India * - 624,20
Interest Accrued on above foan* - 2,656.50

[Tokal

2,450.00

*Also refer Note No. 47




HTL Limited
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)
Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31,2022

20.1 Repayment Schedule for Term Loan from Bank as on 31.03.2022

Period of ‘_duﬂim’l"épnymeqt i “Eprm Loand tum 2
Outstanding amount i 1,478 87 2,556.38
Repayment Due
202223 586.27 T 85600
2023-24 593.1% 856.00
2024-25 844.38

20.2 Term Loan of Rs. 1478.87 Lakhs (Previcus year Rs.2059,00 Lakhs) from one of the bank.

20.3 Term Loan of Rs. 2556.38 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.670,17 Lakhis) from ane of the bank.

20.4. Term loan of R5.2400 Lakhs sanctioned and not yet disbursed up to 31.03.2622 from one of the banks. Repayment of this term Iean would be made in 14
equal quartesty instalment beginming at the end of six months from the disbursement.

20.5.The above said bank Joans are secured by pari- passu charge basis:

1.} All Inmovable and Moveable Property Plant and Equipmeant {both present and fusture)

2.} Registered Morigage of 2.5 acres Industrial iand parcel in Guindy, Chennai.

3.} All current assets and Cash fows. (both present & future)

4) Corporate Guarantee of HFCL Limited (Holding Company) & M/s MN Ventures Private Limited.

5.) Personal Guarantee of the Chaiman of the Company

6.)Agrecment to Pledge of 23.90% shareholding of HTL Limited by HFCL Limited (Holding Company)

20.6 The amount due for repayment by Company in respect to the repayments of Principal and Interest as under:
Loan from Govt. of India

Period:of due for repaymelit Prineipal niferest. :
More than 8 years 624.20 1,768.04
More than 6 {o § years - 30042
Moere than 3 to 6 years - 35294
Mar-20 - 150.21
Mar-21 - 34.88
Mar-22 - C 11755
TR Sl o s o s B T T e
Alse refer Note No. 46

21 Non-Current Financia! Linkilities - Other Liabilitics

‘? ik - March 31,201
Others

Advance from related parties 7,200.00 7,200.00
Total . e _ :200000]

Alsa refer Note No. 47

22 Non-Current Liabilities - Provisions

iixrﬂi:ula?:é

Provisions for Employee Benefits (refer note 38)

a) Provisions for Gratuity 98.06 291.30
b) Provision for Leave Encashment 41.12 11402
[ Tosal; X 139

23 Curreut Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

e e o Murch 312028

Berrowings - Loans repayable on demands

Secured

(i} from Banks-Wocking Capital 5.005.96 3,419.05
(i1) from Banks-Buyer's Credit 1,378.94 £,353.77
(iti) Current Maturities of Long term Borrowings £,442.27 675.87
Unsecured

(i) Loans frem Govs. of India * 624.20 -
(i) from other parties 500,00 500.04
{ofal! : s e sl

*Also refer Note No. 47



HTL Limited
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs,)
Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

23.1 Working Capital Loan of Rs.5005.96 Lakhs (previous year Rs,3419.05 Lakhs) and Buyer's Credit of Rs. 1378.94 Lakhs {Previous year Rs. 1353.77 Lakhs)
from Bank is secured against the following on pari-passu charge basis;

L} All Immevable and Moveable Property Plant and Equipment (PPE) of HTL Limited (both present and future)

2.} Registered Mortgage of 2.5 acres Industrial land parcel in Guindy, Chennai.
3.) All current assets and Cash Flows (both present & firture)
4) Cerporate Guarantee of HFCL Limited (Holding Company) & M/s MN Ventures Private Limited.

5.} Personal Guarantes of the Chaiman of the Company

6.)Agreement to Pledge of 23.90% shareholding of HTL Limited by HECL Limited

23.2 Quarterly returns/statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are materially in agreement with the books of accousts and there are no significant deviations.

24 Current Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables

.ﬁai’ﬁcnﬁlr_s- A&M : 'A'S‘a;t e J
HAPETR March31,2022: March31,202F .
Trade Paynbles

Due to Micro and Small Enerprises (refer note no. 50) 1,352.61

Others 17,006.99

e 535660

24.1 Ageing details of Trade payables:

Particilirs: NotDue:  |ress “Tatal

As at March 31, 2022

(i) MSME 1,252.42 96.84 3.36 - - 1,352,61
(ii) Others ©,784.25 7,131.33 73.85 15.13 17,006.99
Tatal CmEsT] . Taasar| 3L 1543  3B359:60
As at March 31, 2021

(i) MSME 1,021.47 378,18 . = . 1,399.65
(ii) Others 12,182.84 6,517.97 15.90 15.35 18,754.81
[ PR 13,2041  GE%BIS] ased e T

24.2. There are ne Disputed MSME or Disputed ofhers trade payable balances as on 315t Mar 2022 and 31st March 2021

25 Current Financial Liabilities - Other Liabilities

Partivilais
Other Financial Liabilities
a} Interest accrued
-Interest on Term lcans 46.66 22,67
-Interest on Loans from Govt, of India* 2,774.08 -
-Inierest on others 84.51 55.51
b) Creditors for Capital goods 341.28 13.39
c) Expenses Payable 226.10 133.38
d) Other Employees Related Liabilities 248,65 245.70
e) Liability on account of outstanding forward contracts 35.72 52.86

*Also refer Note No. 47

Advances from Custemers; 68.31 14.81
Security Deposit from Customers: 8.00 N 6.73
Statutory Liabilities payable 112.92 279.00
Other liabilities 4.25 13.27
Total 7 19348 T Eyar
27 Current Liabilities - Provisions
Prctienlirsd i il 312021
Provisions for Employee Benefits (refer note 38)
Provisions for Gratuity 1042 11.67
Provisions for Leave Encashment 15.26 16.24
Provisions - Others 8.34 3.39
{Fotsg T e 7
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HTL Limited
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Revenue from operations

Particulars.

March 31,2022

¢ year ended. |

uuuu

March31,2021

Sale and Services
-Manufacturing and trading activities

1,00,540.96 64,044.80

-Service Income 22245 10.58
Other Operating Revenues

-Scrap Sale 225.65 90.93

-Export Incentives 15.64 117.71

-Discount from Vendors - 39.90

__ Total _ 50100470 6430393

Other Income

Particalirs

For theyearended |
March 31,2022 |

Other non-operating income
Interest Income
Excess provision written back
Reversal of Share Based payments to Employees expenses
Rent Received
Exchange Fluctuation Income (Net)
Miscellaneous Income

93.81

23.55
117.56

39.24

27616

Cost of Material Consumed

Particulars:

Forthe yearended |

March 31,2022,

_ March31,2021

Fﬂriheyearenaﬂd

Opening Balance

6,683.84 3,809.30

Add : Purchases during the year 78,240.42 50,860.78
84,924.26 54,670.08

Less: Closing Stock 8,152.56 6,683.84

Fe 7T




HTL Limited
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

31 Other Direct Cost

e —_——————— . i e ———
Particulars ' e il
: March 31,2022 |  March 31,2021

Consumption of stores and spares parts 1,011.52 579.96
Loose Tools written off 11.82 4.80

32 Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in progress and stock-in trade-goods

Parficulars

[ For the yearended | For the yoar

Cl(;sing Stock
Finished Goods 3,261.66 3,182.50
Stock in Trade- Goods - 11022 87.13

Works in progress 2,772.84 1,364.99
' 6,144.73 4,634.62

Opening Stock
Finished Goods 3,182.50 1,652.99
Stock in Trade- Goods 87.13 66.48
Works in progress 1,364.99 913.12

: R L3S 4,634.62 2,632.58
Net Changes (Opening-Closing) | @S0l (2,002:04)

33 Employee benefits expenses

'} Fortheyearended

 Pacticulars : :
o March 31,2021

Salaries, bonus and allowances 4,322.92 3,081.55
Contribution to Provident and other funds 123.54 101.59
Staff welfare expenses 99.67 97.37
Share Based Payments to Employees (Refer note 48)

i' Total ==eroete — e B

Particular lignae : = otaes
EAFHCLALS Mare¢ 022 | March 31,2028

Bank Loan Interest : 730.36 636.51
Interest on other loans 1,142.55 1,142.54

Other Interest - 1,296.14 668.05
Bank Charges and loan processing charges 251.47

Tota ‘ ZemaT




HTL Limited
(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

35 Other expenses

Particulars Forthe yearendeﬂ | Fﬁrtheygarended .
B . March 31,2022 Marchi 31,2021
Rates and Taxes 67.14 95.62
Auditors’ Remuneration
Audit Fee 12.00 12.00
Tax Audit Fee 4.00 4.00
Other Services 2.12 2.87
Out of pocket expenses - 0.01
Legal and Professional Charges 343.74 248.59
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 10.51 0.17
Communication Expenses 30.69 20.41
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 162.95 79.53
Power and Fuel & Water Charges 1,416.64 1,068.28
Repairs and Maintenance 147.99 77.15
Insurance Expenses 103.72 57.14
Selling and Distribution Expenses 618.30 667.34
Office and General Expenses 163.07 118.94
Bad debts, Loans and Advances, other balances written off (net) 0.15 18.09
Directors Sitting Fees 0.45 0.80
Liquidated Damages on Sales 40.70 7.00
Exchange Fluctuation Loss (Net) 295.03 -
Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note 49) 86.06 65.48
Miscellaneous Expenditure 81.40

36 Earning per Share (EPS)- In accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-33)

. Parficilars N M:: ";I"";egzz
Basic & Diluted Earnings per share Rs.
Profit & Loss for the year 4,933.74 2,823.58
Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (A) 4,933.74 2,823.58
Weighted average number of ordinary Equity shares (B} 15,060,000 15,00,000
{used as denominator for calculating basic EPS)
Weighted average number of ordinary Equity shares (C) 15,00,000 15,00,000
(used as denominator for calculating diluted EPS)
Nominal value of ordinary Equity share (Rs) 100.00 100.00
Earnings per share-Basic (A/B) (Rs) 328.92 188.24
Earnings per share-Diluted (A/C) (Rs) 328.92 188.24

- |



HTL Limited
{All amgunts are Rs in Lakhs.)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

37 Critical ing esti and jud;

The preparation of financial statements requires the wse of accounting estimates which,
more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assusmnptions wming out 1o be
calculalion for each affected ling itcm in the financial stalements.

The aceas involving critical estimates ot judgments are:

1. Egtimalion of usefu life of Property, Plant and Equipment Note 4

2. Esti of usefl life of 5 ible asset Note 6
3. Estimalior of defincd benefit obligation Nate 38

4. Estimation of contingenl liabilitics refer Note 39

5. Es(ination of fair value of unlisted securitics Note 42

and jiwd, are

| They

a) Defired Contribution Plan

Contribulion 16 Defined Conttibution Plan, d arc charged 1¢ Stalement of Profit and Loss for the year as under :

B : T s e P T 7 L | AN
Emy 's Contribution to Provideat Fund | 116.00 | 95.41

b) Defned Benefit Plan

The present value of obligation is determined based on actusrial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, whick recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional wnit of employce benefif entitlement and measures each unit separzlely to build up

by definiticn, will seldom equal the actual results. This nofe provides on overvicw of he areas that involvad a |

different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant noles together with information abogl the basis of

the final obli and the oblj for leave is ised in 1he same manner as gratuity.
C - -
. A TExpesier; P 3t
1 [Current service Cost
2 [Pasl scrvice cast = .
3 |Cunailment & Sedtlemont Costf(Credis) - -
4 |interest Expensy 13.97 1973
{Dchined Beaefits Cosi inchuded in P&L 34.90 44.16
SR FTe i e i —rr S 15T T
1 {Actvarial {Gain) / Losses due to Demographic Assumption E: j -
{changes in DRO -
2 {Aclvarial (Gain) / Losses due I Pinancial Assumption
changos in DBO (2.13) 10.58 [{XIH] 3.2
3 |Actuarial (Gain)f Losses duc to Experience on DBO 3T (24.05) 2222 (27.60)
Tutal Actuarial (sain includedd in OCI L04 (13,51 2118 {22.3%)
Total cost recognised in PEL and OCT
1 | Cost Recognised in PEL 3490 44.16 37.55 4530
2 | Remeasuremen Effect Recogmised in OCT 1:04 (13.51) 2118 22.39)
Total Defined Benefit Cost 35.94 30.64 $8.72 2341
et Anse ity TRy ’ e Sheel 3EMarzs. e - 3Mardl Y T A T Y R
1 |Present value of Funded Cbligation o - - -
2 |Fair Value of Pian Assets 5 = a _
3 | Present value of Unfunded obligation {68.47 302.97 56.38 13026
Funded stalus [Surplust(Deficii)| {108.47) (302.97) (56.38) ¢130.26)
4 |Present value of Encashment Obligation - - 47,06 118,84
5 |Prescal value of Availnzent Obligation - - 9232 1142
6 |Revised Sch I of Companics Act, 2053
Current Liability 10:42 1167 1526 16.24
Non-Custent Liability 98.06 291.30| 41.12 114.02

higher degroe of judgment or complxily, and of itcms which are

d on hisierical experience and athir factors, including expectalions of fulsre evenis that may have a financial trpact on the Conipany and that are believed 1o be reasonable vnder the ircumsiances.

38 Dusing the year, Company has recogaised the follewing amouats in the financial statemeaits as per Ind AS - 19 "Employoos Benefits” as specificd in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015:



HTL Limited
(ANl amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)

Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2622

£2012-14) Ultimate

{2042-14) Ultimate

I 31-Mapd- C L tMur3d 3t-Maedz AtMard.
n_l Value of Defined Bepefils Obligation at Beginning 30297 275.66 13026 122.60
{Opcring)
2 |Current Service Cost 2093 2443 2,719 754
3 |Interest Cost 13.97 19.73 4,76 £.26)
4 |Curmailment & Settlement Cost/(Credit) - - - o
5 {Actuzrial (GainsyLoss L {13.51) 21,18 (22.39)
& }Benelits Paid {230.43) {334 {132.60)| (15,15
7 Prcsu_\l Vaiue Of Defited Benefits Obligation at tbe end 108.47 30297 5633 e
{Closing)
i =Mar2 IEMaf21 YT 2 Ty R SR 7 113
1 |Fair Value of Plan Assets at the begi S = = ]
2 |Expected Return gn Asscls - - . N
3 |Employer Contribution - 4] S 4
4 |Emplover dicect benefit pavments 236,43 1.34] 132.60 15.75
5 |Plan Panticipants Contributions - - S 4
6 |Setilemems By Fund Manager - -] = ]
7  |Benefits Payouls (230.43) (3.34)] (132.60) {(15.7%)
8 |Actuarial gain/(Loss} - - - =
9 |Fair Value of Plan assets at the end - -] o g
- 3 § e S M2t
iripact of the change in Discount Rate
1 |Present Value of Obligation at (he end 108.47 302.97) 56.38 130.26|
fmpact due to increass of 6.5% {5.79) {23.12) {4.97) (11.149)
Empact due to decrease of 0.5% 1152 2607 593 12.30
Impact of the change in salary increase
2 |Present Value of Obligation at the end 108,47 302.97| 5638 13026
Impact due to ingeease of 0.5% L 1E81 26.06 594 12.73
Impact due to decrease of 0.5% {10.16) 23.79) (5.04) (11.26)]
Sensitivities dug lo mortality & withdrawas are insignificant & hence ignored.
ntiskity profife: » e T H-MaridE 4 AEME2t
Projected Benefit Obligation at end 108,47 0297
PAYOUTS
1 [March 2022 to March 2023 042 1167 6,44 5.69
2 |March 2023 to March 2024 146 442 Q.81 2.69
3 |March 2024 to March 2025 2.60 4.45 232 2.10
4 |March 2025 to March 2026 3.7 5.08 187 .72
5 IMarch 2026 to March 2027 1:50 24.90 142 1137
6 {March 2027 to March 2032 2821 14267 12,10 3177
7__1Macch 2032 onwards 55.56 10998 31.73 54.03
T T ] M & I T A6iMar 3t
1 T.65% 144% T44%
2 |Expected Return on Assels 0.00%% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
3 |Salary Escalation GUF5Y &4%TA 6.00% GUESY & 4%TA 6.00%
4 JAltrition rate L% LOD% 100% 1.00%
5 |Moxtality S { Lives Monaliyy | 17090 Assured Lives Mortaliy| o s Indian Assured Lives

Note: The estimates of sate of escalation in salnry considercd in acluarial valualion, lakes into accounl indlation, seniority,

Valuer.

Mertalizy (2012-14) WRtimate Montakity {2012-14) Ullimate,

premotion and other relevaut factors iscluding supply aad demand in Lhe employmerit market, The above information is certified by 1l Actuarial



HTL Limited -
(Al amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)
Notes forming part of the Financials Statemants for the year ended March 3, 2022

39 Commitments and Contingencies

(s) Contingent Linbilities not provided for in respect of :

Asat
31,Mar21
)  Unexpired Letters of Credit 657,35
(i) Guararices given by banks on behalf of the Company 2,605.82
(i) Impact of pending Kligations not ackrowledged as debt in financiat statements 471151
(iv) Custom Duty against import under EPCG scheme 460.42

{a) The Company's pending liligations coinprise of claims against the Company and procecdings pending with Tax Authorities . The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and praceedings and s made adequate provisions, wherever nequired and
disclosed the contingent tinbilitics, wherever applicable, in its linancial statcinents. The Comipany docs ot expect the outcome of these proceedings 1o have

a material impact on iis financial pesition.
{b) The Company periodically reviews all its long term contracls 1o assess for any matcrial foreseeable fosses. Hased on such review wherever applicable,

the Company has made adequate provisions for these fong tersn conirels in the books of acconnt as required
under 2ny applicablc law/accounting standard.

{c) The company is having derivative coniract, however no contingem liability is involved as on 3151 March 2022,
{d) There are no ampunt which are required 1e be transfecred to the tevestor Education and protection fund by the company
{d)The Parliament of India has approved the Code on social Security, 2020 (the Code) which may impaci 1he contribytions by the Conmpany towards

providest fund, gratuity and EST. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the effoctive date has
rot yet beca nolified. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and wils record any zelated impact in the period the Code becomes effective,

(75 Cagitad Commiimets - e — EE————

fnih S e ; B0

Estimated amount 6f contracls remaining to be oxecuted on capital account and not provided for
(nes of advances)

1,295.06

4G As required by Ind AS - 24 "Related Party Disclosures"

(i}. Name and deseription of retated parties.

WFCL Liniitod
{b) Fellow Subsidiary: Monela Finarce Private Limited
HFCL Advance Sysviems Private Limiled
Polixel Securities Systeens Privale Ltd
Dragonwave HFCL India Private Ltd
Raddef Pvt. Ltd.
HFCL Technologies Private Ltd (w.c.f. 26.06.2021)
(¢) Enterprise pwned or significantly influguced by holding|Exicom Tele-systems Lid
company’s KMP or Iheir relatives
(@) Enterprises awned or significanily influenced by key Nienpa Telecomunications Private Limited (w.e.f. 14.06,2011)
management personnel or dheir relatives
(2) Kev management personnel : Mr.G.8. MNaidu, COO & Munager
Mer. C. ). Ponnappa Chief Financial Officer
ME. 8 Naravanan, Company Secretary
Note : Refiled party relntionship is as ideslified by the Compuny ard relicd upon by the auditos.
(ii). Nature of transactions - The iransactions entered into with the relaled parties during the year along with related balsnces are as under:
=T = = i o T - - =T - -
3 2 it o . Yedrigs March 31:5033). 5
Purchases/receiving of Gosds & Materials
HFCL Limited 14,266.6% 13,006.26
Exicom Tele-syslems Led - 39.17 -
Nimpaa Teleoommunicalions Private Limited 45,98 -
Sal ing of Goods & Materi:
HFCL Limited 32,760.25 19,634.70
Exicom Tele-sysiers Ltd 17 -
Nimpaa Telecemirmnications Private Litmited 46.39 -
Income - Rent /Qiber expenses
HFCL Limited 4.66 -
Exicom Tele-systoms Ltd - -
Nimpaa Telecomimmications Privale Limited 664.58 =
Imierest on Loans and Advances
HFCL Limited $65.00 957,50
Qutstanding Balances
HFCL Limited - Trade Payable 750,92 1.056.16
HFCL Lemited - Trade Receivable 7,449.08 9,405.90 |
Exicom Tele-sysiems Ltd-Trade Receivable 5238 -
Nimpaa Telecommunicalions Private Limited - Trade Payable 32996 -
HFCL Limited - Advance 7,200.00 7,200.00
HFCL Limited - Loan 2,450.00 245000
R ion af Kcy M Personnel's
(#) Short term employee beacfits
Mr.G.8.Naidu, COO & Manager 5290 5441
Mr. C. D. Ponnappa Chiel Fiancial Qfficer 53159 47 90
Mr. S Narayanan, Company Secretary 22.35 20.79
(1) Post employment benefits*
Mr.G.8.Naidw, COO & Manager 332 3.32
Mr. €. D. Ponnappa Chief Financial Officer - 327 2.85
Mr, § Narayznan, Company Secretary - -
(c) Dther long term hewefits* - -
() Share based payraentst
Mr.G.8 . Naidu, COO & Manager - 12.42
Mr. C. D. Ponnappa Chicf Financial Officer - 10,93
Mr. § Nardyanan, Company Secretary - -
ESOQP excervised
Mr.G.8. Naidu, COO & Manager 19.37 o
Mr. €. D. Pornappa Chief Financial Officer 17.06 -
R ion payable to Key M P ]
Mr.G.5.Naidu, COO & Manager 83t 8.31
Mr. C. D. Ponnapps Chiel Financial Officer 8.41 7.32
Me., § Narayanan, Company Secrelary 191 318
* Notc: As the liabilities for defined benefit plans are provided on actuarial basis for the Ciom

# Note: Valuz of Emplovees stock options/ restricted stock units isswed by HFCL 10 HTL emplovees constdered lerein.

pany as a whole, the amount pertaining 1o key managenent personnel are not included,
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HTL Limited
{All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.}
Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31,2022

Begment Reporting (Tnd-As 108)

The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating resnits of ifs business segment separately for the purpose of making decisions
measured consisienily with profit ot loss in the financial stalcments.,

The 14 have been id; on 1he basis of nawre of produsts,

i Scgment revenug includes safcs and other income directly identifiable with the segiment inchuling inter-segment sevenue,
Expenses that are direcily identifiable with the segmen! are considered for determining 1he sopment result.

iii. Expensos f Incomes which are ot directly allocable to the segements are included omder wn-allocable expendilure / incomes.

iv, Scgment resulis include margins on inter-scgment sales which are reduced in arriving at the profit before (ax of the company.

v. Segoent assets and liabilities include those directly identi with the respecti EUn-all assets and Liabiliti;

Ialer — Segment revenu - Segment revenue resulting From transactions with other business segments is accounted on the basis of t
negotiated basis.

#)  Primary Segment Infi ion (by Business

about resource allocation and perfe

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacture of optical fiber cables and other telecom related products. Tlrus, it operates in z single primary segment.

b)  Secondary Segment Reporting {by Geogrophical Segments)

Thz Cosipanly caters mainly to the needs of the dowestic market and 1he export lumover being 1.06% (Previous year 1.59%) of the total tumever of the Company,

Revenue of approximately 72 89% {Previous year 88,959} ace derived from two external

which individually for more than

Financial Instruments by Categary

10%.

Segment perf

hence there are no reponiable geographical segments.

the assels and liabilities thal refato to-the company as a whole aid aot allocabe to any segmenl.
ransfer price agreed between [he segments. Such transfer prices are either determined to ¥ield a desirod margin or agseed on a

d based on profit or loss and is

1) Financial Asscis
1) [nvestmenis E:
Equity shares
(i) NSL Wind Power Company (Phoolwadi) - 17.08 - 3 17.08 -
Private Limited

1) Trade Regeivables - - a6 - - 18,538.70
1iD) Bank Deposits 2 - 412.67 - - 265.84
1¥} Cash and Cash Eguivalents o ) 65.83 - - 29.68
V) Other Bank balances - . 2,217.20 - - L015.72
V1) Other Financia! Assets - - 447.39 - ) 347.20 |
Total Financial Assets = 17.08 20371.35 = 17,08 20,197.15
2} Finaucial Lighililics
I} Borrowings

A) From Banks - - 10,420,1% - - 7.502.60

B) From Qthers - - 35120 - - 6,230.69
11} Trade Payables = B 18,359.60. - - 20,154.45
IIiy Cher Financia! Liabilitics 3532 - 10.%21.25 52.86 L) 7.670.66
Total Financial Liabilitics 35,72 = 43,275.28. 52.86 - 41.557.80
Fair Yalue measurcment
Fair Value Higrarchy and ique nsed to d inc fair value ;

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs (o valuation techniques that are used to measure Exir vatne that are either observable or unobservable

{a) Year Ending March 31, 2022

and are categorized into Level I, Level 2 and Lovel 3 inputs.

; :i,;:;rﬂjli . L

Financial Assets
Investments
(I} NSL Wind Power Company (Phoolwadi) Private
Limited

[;I:oﬁ!’lﬁi:ﬁiﬂ:!ﬂﬁéﬁ”' i L

(5

T
Financigl Liabilities
(Other Financial Lizbilitics 25

3smn =

aEFinanciali {abifi

Fimancial Assets
Investreents
(i} NSI. Wind Power Company (Phoohvadi) Private
Limited

Sigaificant estimates

The fair valuc of financial instryments that are nol (raded in an active market is desentined using valuation techniques. The Company uses its ju
endt of each reponiing period.

dgment [0 slect & variety of wethods and make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
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{All amgunts are Rs in Lakhs.)
Rates forming part of the Financipls Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 =

Financial Risk Management
The Company's principal financial liabililies, other tian derivatives, comprise loans and Sorrowings and trade and other payables, The main purpase of these financial liabilities is 10 finance

the Company’s ions and 10 provide 10 support its
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and cash equivatents, trade and olher i that derive directly from ils
‘The Company™s business activilics oxposa it 10 & variety of financial risks, namely liquidity risk, market risk and credil risk. The Copany's senjor management has the overall ibility for Lhe establish and ight of the Company's risk
framework. The Company has d 2 Risk M C ittee, which is ible for ping and itoring he Company's risk poficies. The Company’s risk pelicics are establi 10 identify and analyse tie rigks fced
by tiie Company, to set appropriate risk litnits and controls and (o monitor risks and adherenee to limits. Risk management poficies and systems are reviewed regulariy 10 refiect changes in market conditions and the Company's activitics.
Liquidity Risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will Eice in mecling its obligati iated with its fi

ial tiabilities. The Company’s approach Lo managing liquidity is lo ensore that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due withon incurring
unscecplable tosses. In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions.

The following table shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at Lhe Balance Sheet date.

o Paricalirs 2 " Notes Now: oo Caervingameunt T Tesn{han 17 months .. More than 17 months- ] “Tofal’..

As at March 31,2022

Horrowings 204&23 13.594.35 895137 5,042.98 1399435
Traie Payablos 24 1835950 18,359.60 - 18.359.60
Other liabilities 21425 10.956.97 175697 7,200.00 1095697 |
Az at March 34, 202§

Borrowings W& 13,732,69 5.948.69 1,784.00 13,932.69
Trade Payables b2] 20,154.45 20.154.45 - 20,154.45
Otheer liabilities L &2s 71052 523.52 7,200.00 772352
Market Risk

Market risk is the visk that the fair value of furure cash flows of a financial instrument will Sluctuate because of cla
instruments affected by maket risk inchude loans and borrowings, deposits, FYTOCI investments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate fo the position as af 31 March 022 and 31 March 2021,

nges in market prices. Market risk comprises threc types of rigk: interest rate risk, <urrency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk. Financial

POTENTIAL IMEACT-ORRISE. ~™ e . MANAGERENTEGHY 1 =
1, PRICE RISK
The company is mainky exposed 1o the price risk due 10 its investment in cquily inslrments, The]In order (o manage ils price risk arising from i thel As an estimation of the approxé Empact of price risk investments] '
price risk arises due to wacentainties about the future markel values of these investtents. Company diversifies its porlfolio in accordance with Ihe limits|in equity instruments, the Company has calculated the impaci as|

scl by the risk management policies. Tollows.

Equity Price Risk is related to the change in markel reference price of fhe invesinients in equity] For equity instraments, a 10% increase in prices would have led (o
securities. approximaicly an additional gain of Rs,1.71 Lakhs for year ending|
The fair value of some of the Company's iavestmenss i fair value through other comprehensive March 2022 (R'&l.'-'l Lakhs for year em_ﬁng _Mﬂmh 2021} in atter
income: securities exposes to equily price risks. Tn genenl, these securities are no1 held Forl comprehensive e A 10% docrease In prices would have led )
trading purposes. The fair value of oquily i ifficd as fair valus through an equal but opposite effect.

other comprehensive income as at March 31st,2022 was Rs.17.08 Lakhs, (March 311, 2021 wag
Rs.17.08 Lakdhs), the fair value of which is determined using valuation echniques,

2. INTEREST RATE RISK

Tnterest mie risk is (he risk that e fair value or future cash Bows of a financia! instrument will|In order to manage its inlercst rate risgk The Compawyl
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s expasure to the risk of |diversifics  its porifolio im accordance with the risk|
<hanges in market intcres! rates relates primarily 1o the Company's long-ernt debt obligations|management policies,
with floating interest raies,

has Borowings with Banks & Others amounting to Rs,13994.35 Lakhs as a1 March|
3181, 2022 (Rs.13732.69 Lakhs as ag March 31st, 2021)
Inicresl Expenses on Bowowings for year onded March 3ist , 2022 is Rs.1872.91 Lakhs|
(Rs.1779.05 Lakhs as at March 31st, 2021)

As an gslimation of the approximate impact of (he interos! rale risk,
with respect to financial instruments, the Company has calculated the
empact of a 0.25% change in interest rafes. A 0.25% increaso in|
interest rales would have led to approximately an additional Rs. 34.99)
Lakhs Eoss for year endod March 31st, 2022 (R5.34.33 Lakbs loss for]
year ended March 31st 2021) in Interest income. A 0.25% decrease in
Eatgros] rates would have led o an equal but opposite cffict.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk thal counterparty will nos meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contrac

t, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposcd 1o credit risk fiom ils opetating activilies (primsasily trade receivables) and from ils financing
activitics, including deposits with banks and financial mstitulions and other financial instruments,

Trade Receivahles
Customer credit risk is managed by sach busincss enit subject to the Company cstablished policy, procedures and control relating to cusionier credit risk mansgement, Credit quality of z customer is assessed based on an credit mting and i
credit limils are defined in d with this O ding customer recsi are segularly moaitored. At 31 March 2022, the Company had top 3 customers (31 March 2021: fop 3 customers) that ewed the Company more thaa INR 13596.57 Lakhs

{3k March 2021: 15571.72 Lakhs) and acconnted for approximately 78.97% (31 March 2021: 85.39 %) of all the receivables oulstanding,

An impai analysis is al each reporting dale on an individunl basis for major clients. In addition, a large number of minos receivables arc
at the reporting date is the cimying value of cach class of financial assets disclosed in Note 9 . The Company does aot hotd collaterl as security. The
several jurisdictions and indusicies and opetate in largely independent markets.

Financial instruments and cash depasits

Credit risk feom balances with hanks and financisl institutions is by the in d; with the Company’s policy. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the management on an anoual basis, and may be wpdated througlioat the year, The
limils are st to mininsise (he concentralion of risks and 1herelore miligate Gnancial loss hrough counterparty’s potemial faiture to make payments.

Naone of the Company's financial nssets are either impaired or past due, and there were aio indications that defaulis in paymen! obligations would occur.

gwuped into homogenous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The maximurn exposuse 1o credit risk
Company evaluaics the concentration of risk with respect to trade i aslow, as its are located in
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(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs.)
Nates farming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Capital management

Capitat includes issued equity capital and share premium and ail ather exquity reserves attriutable 10 the equily holders, The primsty objective of the Company’s capital
and equity al the end of the reporting period :

isto imize the sl walue. The following table provides detail of the debt

Partifulars T T e
Debl ¢ Note 20 & 23) 13,994.35 13,732.69
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents (Mole 14) (65.83)| {29.68)|
Net Debt 13,928.52 13,703,041
‘Total Equity 7,877.31 2,985.76
Net Debt to Equigy Ratio 197, 4.59)

The company is planning to expand in futore and thus management is hopefit of bringing the Debt to Equity ratio withii the industry renge.

Onut of the tota] Land in posscssion of the Company a1 Guindy Indusirial Area, Cliennai, land teasuring 35.89 acres is held by the Company in ike capacity of assignes in terms of assignment deed dated 3.12,1968 executed by Govermmest of Tamil Nadu for [ndustria)
Development of Goindy Industrial Area, Chernai. In order 1o Eive title of the sbave assigned land in faveur of the Company, the Gavestunent of Tamil Nady had requived the Company to surrendcr back 4.90 acres of amulilised land to the Small Indusiries

Department, Chennai. The Company bhad susrendeeed the vacant Tand measuring 4.90 acres to the Swmall Industries Department, Chennad in 2002, Tn respect of the remaining land measuring 30,99 acres, the rame of the Company has been entered in the revenne
eccords of the Government of Tamil Nadu. The company is following up with Government of Tamil Nadu for obtaining the clear title.

In respect of above said land, a Show Cause Notice (SCN} was issued on 08(h Jung, 2020, by Office of the Revenue Divisional Officer, Guindy,

Chennai, objecting on patta of assigned Land cntered in the eevenyz ecords of the Gowi. Subscquently, inlerim siny on SCN
was granicd by Hon'ble Madras High Court on 19ih June, 2020. Further, date of hearing is yet to be fixed by ihe Hon'ble Madeas High Couri.

| ¥roperig i siacs whielt dute|

Property, planl and equipmien

- Sﬁne Govermnent of Tamil Ne : 30th September 1470
‘Nadu

Loan of Rs. 624.20 Lakhs (Previous ycar Rs.624.20 Lakhs) togethier with imerest accrued and due thereon of Rs.3398.24 Lakhs (Previous. year Rs.3003.49 Lakhs) is due 1¢ Government of India (GOD. In additicn ko this, the Govt. of India has aocepted the request o
adjust Rs. 247.00 Lakhs compensation receivable by HTL in case of ETP claim against the outstanding intercst portion in respert of GOI Loan, [Refer Note. 46 below).

Claims of Rs. 347.00 Lakhs receivable from BSML against the ion app! by Telecom £ ission vide letter No. U-37042/3/97-FAC dated Isl Mazy, 2001 for pre-closure of ETP projoct. Dh of Tel i

3/97-FAC dated 02.12.2003 has conveyed the decisipn of the competent authoritics to adjust Oe above said amount agaiust the interest partion of the optstanding Governmeni of India Loan. In reply, the Company requested DoT vide lester no. 43.12 ETP dated
08.12.2003 1o adjusi the compensation amotn of Rs, 347.00 Lakhs agaitist the principal amount of loan oulstanding as on 01052001, the date on which 1he compensation was approved. The Govt. of India has reiterated the adjosiment of Rs.347.00 Lakhs
compeasation receivable by HTL in case of ETP claim against Ihe interest ponion of the ouistanding loan from Governmen of Endia (GOI) . ARer adjustment of ETP compensation of Rs 347 Laklis againsi the interest pertion of cutstarding GO foar it terms 6F GOI
letier dated 2nd Dectiber, 2003, the Company has made adequato interesy provisions (ill 31.03.2022. In the fimancial statements, the company has adjusted the said claim receivable from The interest Eiability due to GOI, though 2 formal concurrence of adjustment &

subssquenl interest reconciliations is still ongoing. The company has further submilled reques! for ceductien in intersst rate on oulstanding GOl loan to SEBI MCLR + 2% ie. 10% p.a. rlrospectively from 16.10.2061 which is pending before DaT for approval, The
Company expects no further liability, once the adjustment & agreed upon, [Refer Nate 45 above|

(DoT) vide: letier N, |J-31012-

The Company had proposed for a right issue of equity shares for Rs. 12,000 lakhs in the rato of equity shares holding i.e 26% by GOI and 74%
outstanding loan along with interest due from GOI and advances’ Loans extended by HFCL. Howeves, the proposal for loan conversion has not beest a
‘The Jozn amount along with Ihe interest s boen directed o be vepaid and therefore same has been classified under Current Financial Liability.

by HFCL Limited, Holding Company. 1t was also proposed that the right issue be funded by way of conversion of
greed wpon by the Competent Authority of GOI as commmunicated vide file no 20-71/2055-FACTI dated 27.01. 2022,

The Company has proposed for of 8% red ble and no ible pref capifal of Rs. 40,000 Lakhs by way of ion of ding Loans & ad dded by HFCL Limited. The Company has submittod the propasal before Department
of Telecommunications (DeT) vide letter HTL/DoT/21-22 dated 22.03.2022 for secking their administrative approval for the proposal 5o that the required formalities under the Comy

parties Act can be taken up accordingly. The said preference capital will be medeemed
only after repayment of GOI loan post the receipt of approval en reconciliations and reduction of interest rate by DoT [Refer Note 46 sbave] in quaricrly inslalments. In view of this, entite Loans & advances payzble 10 HFCL Limiled have been shown under “Nan-
Current Financial Eiability” in the flinancial statements,

Share Based Payment

a) ESOF Pilan
On Ociober 15, 2018, Holding Company HFCL Limited approved the Eniployee Steck Option Plaa (HFCL Plan 2017) for the grani of slock oplicns to 1l employees of HECE. and its subsidiaries. The Company recognises the cosl towards the options granted to the
employee of the company by helding company through equily sciiled methed. The ination, R ion ang Cy fon Ci ittee of HFCL admiai

the plaat through a trusi established specially for this purpase.

in October 2018, the HFCL approved the grant 16 the employes of the Company under the HFCL plan 2017, The opions under this grant vest 1o the employees as 40%, 30% and 30% of the total grane at the znd of first, sccond and 1hird year from the date of gam

respoctively, wilh an exercise period ending 5 year from the end of last vesting, The conditions for number of options granted include service terms and performance grade of the eployees. These options are sxercisable at a pievailing fair market value of per share,
ie., the closing market price of the sharc of HFCL as on 1he National Stock Exchange of India immediately prior o the datc of grant.

friz TR e T T

e

Oulﬂ;n ing al the Beéi;l}l}ng.uf the vear -

Gratied Dusing the year e o N a
Forfeited during the year S - 25,800 20.65
Exercise during the year ¥ 204,400 065 - o
Expired during the year e =
Ouistanding at the ¢ad of 1he year 1,04.800 265 3,09,200 20.65
Excrrisable at the cnd of the year ' 11,200 20.65 - -
Exctcise prices for aulstanding options at the end of vear s =
) RSU Plzn

On October 15, 2018, Holding Company HFCL Litited appreved the Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) for the grant of 2S1s to the employees of HECL and its subsidsaries,

In Oclober 2018, the HFCL appi the grant 16 1he of the Company under the RSUs. The RSUs urder this grant vest (0 the empleyecs as 70% and 30% of the total grant at the end of third and fourth year from the dals of grant respectively, with an
exercice period ending 5 year from the end of last vesting, The conditions for number of aptions granted include service terms and performaice grade of the employees. Exercise price of RSUs will be Rs, 1/-

The RSUs granied under the HFCL, Plan 2647 arc forfeited du o non-achievement of defined anmual performance d ined by the Nomiaali ion and . ion C ittee in its meeting held on Aprit 23, 2022 and accordingly as
on March 31, 2022 ihe share based payment reserve is adjusted. .

Par
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted Thring The year

Forfeiled during the year

Exercise during Il year

Expired during the year X =
Outstanding al (he end of the year - 1,00 2,92 000 1
Exercisable a1 the end of 1he year

Excreise prices for outslanding oplions sl lhe end of year




HTL Limited
{All ameunts are Rs in Lakhs.)
Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

49 Corporate Social Respensibility Expenses:
E = R 312972 R §
e Partieplars 31,2 : : Man:[ﬁ}l, 2L,
@) [Amount required 10 B¢ spent by the company during the year |Rs. 86,06,035/- Rs. 65,48,425/-
{if) | Amount of expenditure incurred Nil Nil
(i) |Shortfall at the end of the year Rs.86,06,035/- Rs, 65,438,425/~
n . Rs.40.63,135/-
(i) {Total of previous years shorfull (et of expenditure of Rs. 24,85,290- for FY 2020-21) il
The CSR Committee of the Company approved the Mobile
Medical Unit project to be taken up in Hosur for a period of 1 year | After the approval of Mobile Medical Unit projoct a1 chennai
 a total cost of Rs. 51,50,5504-, Mol with the NGO was with a tenure of 3 years at a to1al cost of Rs. 1,05,00,000/- by
(v) |Reason for shortfall cxceuted on 32,3.2022 and the said NGO will be implementing SR Cominittes of the Company, Mol with the NGO was
the project in FY 2022-23. Further it has been ptanmed 1o estend  |exocuted oo 30.3.2021 and the said NGO slarted
the project petiod to 3 years in line with the CSR Praject a implementation in FY 2021-22.
Chennai.
(vi} |Mature of CSR activities Preventive health care facilities for the needy peapte. Preventive health care facilitics for the needy people.

(vid]

Details of related panty transactions, ¢.g., contribution 10 a
st controlled by the company in retation to SR Nil Nil
expendilare as per rlevant acoounting standand

Opening Provision = 65,48 425

(+) Provision made = 86,06,035 Opening Provision = Nid
() Expenditure incurred = 24,85,230 (+} Provision made = 65,948,425
Closing Provision = 1,26,69,170 (-) Expenditure incurred = Nil
ool x - Tos: ision = 65,48,425
= h“:fn[:u::zm:‘: s made with respoct “:]:‘c]‘“b““y '“"'":':I"“ The provisioned and unspoat amount of Rs. 56,06,035/- will be o
the provisior during the year shall be shown sepacately. lransitrred b0 2 separate account viz., HL Lid- Unsperd  The provisioned and unspent asount of K. 63.48,425)- has
Comorate Sociat Responsibility Account FY 2021-22 with Yos  [been transferred on 4.5.2021 w0 scparate account viz., HTL
Bark Lit., T.Nagar Branch Lid. Unspent Cozporale Soctal Responsibility Acoount with
Yes Hank Lid., T.Nagar Branch,
The said NGO will be taking up the project during the FY 2022- [ The said NGO started imptementing the project since FY'
23. 2021-12.
530 Disclosure required under Micro and_ Sn_ngll_ Enterprises Devel prient {\cl, 2006 (the Act) re as follows :
Particplars
a. |Principal amoun due . 1,352.61
Interest due on above 4.94 229
b.JInterest paid during the period beyord the appointed day Nil il
€L Amount of inlgres due and payable for the pariod of delay in making payment without adding the inlerest specificd under the Act. Nil Nil
d.f Amoynt of interest acemucd and cemaining unpaid at the end of the period 8.34 1.39
.| Amount of firiher interest ining due and payabl in the ing years, yntil such date when the inforest dues as above are actually paid to simall enterpriscs for the putpose of : -
disall as a deduotit diewre under Sec.23 of (e Act Hil Hil

51

Note: The above inforenation and (hat given in Note No.24 ' Trade Payzbles' regarding Micro pnd Sinall Enterptises has been delermined on he basis of information available with the Compal
A_ Aunglytical Ratias

ny and has been relied upon by the auditors.

Current ratio - — €Curmu A.rsels T énrnem Liah itics )

Debt-Equity ratie Total Liabilitics Totat Sharcholders Equity 571 060.50%
Debt-Serviee coverage ratip Earining for Debl Service Debt Service 8.87 10.92 ~-18.81%
Inveatsry turnover ratfo Cosl of goods sold Avg Inventory 544 5.01 -8.59%
Traie receivables furnover ratio Revenue fiom Operation Avg Accounts Receivable 5.65 4.21 34.28%
Trade payables turnover ratio Purchases Avg Aceounis Payable 4.27 3.5 20.13%
Net capital turnover ratio Revenue from Cperation Avg Working Capital 18.60 14.53 23.88%
Return on equity ratio Net liceme (PAT) Avg Shareholders Equity %.84% 182% -50.09%
Net profit ratio Net Income {(PAT) Total Revense 487% 4.31% 11.59%
Return on Capital employed EBIT Avg Capital Employed 54.47% 42.55% 28.01%
Retorn on Investment Income from 1 AvgTs NA N.A

Explanation for variances ding 25%: =

(i) Debt equity ratio has improved on acconni of increase in retained eanlings,

(i) Trade Receivables twrnover ratio has i Ip dug to ion in Average it in current period.

(iii)) Theogh the EBIT has increased in Curreat peried, Reture: on equity ratio has reduced due to increase in average skarcholders equity on account of increase in refained carnings in current year and previous yedr.

(i) Regurn on Capital employed has reduced dus to increpse in capital [oyed. Capital employed was i due to increass in retained earnings and reduction of debt.

B. Other Statutary Information

i) The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has begn initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property.

if) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Curreney during the financial year. .

iii) The Company has net advanced or loaned or invesicd funds 1o any olher or entity(ies), incleding foreign entities {1 diaries) with the und ding that 1kc k di

y shall:
(a) directly or indircctly lend o7 invest in olher persons or entities identified in ary manncr whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate bencficiaries) ar
(b) provide any puarantee, sceurity or the like to of on behalf of the ultimate beneficiatics
i¥) The Company 1as not received any fand from any persan(s) or entity(ics). inchading foreign entities (funding party} with the underslanding (whether recorded in wriling or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) dicectly er indireeily lend or invest in other persons or catilics identifted in aity sianner whatsoever by or o behalf of the funding party (uhtimate beneficiaries) or
(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.
¥} The Company docs net have any sucls transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrend
relevant provisions of the income Tax Act, 1961,
vi) The Company has comptied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the At read with the Companies (Restriction on nember of Layers) Rules, 2017.
vif} The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by and bank or financials institution or lender during the year.
viii) The Company does not kave any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
ix} The Company has used the bormewings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was obtained.
£} The Company docs not have any dransactions with companics which are struck off,

lercd or disclosed as income during the year in the Lax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survay or any other
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(All amounts are Rs in Lakhs,)
Notes forming part of the Financials Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

52 Foreign Currency Exposure

a) The company und: ions g i in foreign currencies; to exch Tate f]. ions will arise.
The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts 1o hedge ils risks associated with Forcign currency fluctuations refating 10 certain firmn
strategy. which provides principles on Lhe use of such forward coniracts consisient with Company’s Risk Management Policy.

angd i The use of foreign currency forward contracts is Boverned by the Company’s
The Company does not usc forward contracts for specufative purposes.

The carrying amounts of the company’s forcign cureency denominateqd monetary assels and monclary liabilitics at the end of the reperting period are as follows;
b) Delails of Ouistanding Hedging Conlracts relating, o Foreign Huyer's Credit :

B s : RO S Lo AentMarchdEIE T AsatNmhEaL:
‘ : == == | Amveaeim | maesiog AmoastinFurelgr Carseney: Eoplaaiio e
Forward Contracts {Sell) I USD/INR 1841749 1.378.94 18.41.743 L,353.77
<) Forgign Currgncy Exposure:

Fro ] - TR ,

Eolicn i ] Palealfa VR, -
Trads Payably USD/INR 28.15.953.02 y ] 170192
Trad; Payable GBP/INR 1,010.80 4 =
Capex Payable USD/INR 82,950,004 - =
‘Capex Pavable EURTNR. 1.04,500.00] . g
Trade Recgivable USD/INR. 5,02,634.07] JBLO3 3,36.,104 247.05
Trade Receivable EUR/INR 9,068.35| 7.68 | -

d) Forciga currency sensilivity analysis:

The ing detaits ave < the C 's itivity o a 5% increase and decrease #31 the INR against the relevant foreign Currencies. The sensitivily analysis includes only outstanding foreign cutrency derominated imonetary itoms as tabulsted above and
adjusts their ranslation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency raies. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans. A positive aumber below indicates an increase in profit or equity and vice-versa.

mpact 60 PR Tute tor tidyear =

TSI Impact
EURC: Impact
GBP Tmpact

(72.74)

53 Exceptional Trem

The Company has introduccd a Volumary Relirement Scheine (VRS) 2021 o eligible employeesiofficers and the VRS Scheme was remained open from 41h Oclober 2021 to 101h N 2021.VRS Ci
Lakhs has been disclosed as an exceptional item in the financial resulis,

paid during the period ing to Rs.637.67

54 Tax Reconciliation

Particufars ~ e s FY0nET

Net Profit as per Statemeat of Profit and Loss (before tax) 6,649.44 4,540,20
Current Tax rate @ 25.17% a 1672353 1,142.68
Adjustment:

Depreciation & ollter adjustment G347 {7.31)
Amonnt of cligible / ineligible expenditure {3101 30.12
Carry forward foss and Unabsorbed Depreciation | {157.52)
TaxFromona por Bankt e R e e T D TR T T .

55 Impact of Covid 19

The Company’s operations were affocted adversely during first hslf of the period under review due to intermitteas lockdowns declared and ictions in g of labour by Gy due to COVID-19 pandemic, The Company has taksn all precantions
m fhe pandemic refating 10 COVID-19 in the preparation of the fnancial statements including

inthe global i itiens bocause of this pandernic, the Company fizs, at the date of approval of the fitancial statements, used internal and external sources of information inc]udjhg credit repocts and related information and economic foresasts

and expiects that the cacrying amount of (he assets witl bo recoversd. The impact of OOVID-19 an the Company's financial statemenls may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of (iese financial statements,

56 Figures for the proviovs year have been regrouped d wi ¥ 1o confinm current year's classification / presentation,
For Oswal Sunil & Company For and on behzlf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
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HTL LIMITED IATTENDANCE SLIP|
(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC0O04355)

Regd.Office: GST Road, Guindy, Chennai-600 032,
Email:coo@htllimited.com Website: www.htllimited.com
Phone: 044- 22501020  Fax: 044-22500341.

615" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2022

[/We hereby record my/our presence at the 61% Annual General Meeting of the Company at
GST Road, Guindy, Chennai - 600032 thru” Video Conferencing over MS Teams on Friday,
29% July, 2022 at 12 Noon.

Member’s Folio Member’s/ Proxy’s Name Member’s / Proxy’s Signature
Note:
1. Please complete the Folio No and name, sign the Attendance Slip and hand it over at
the Meeting Hall.

2. Physical copy of the Annual Report for 2022 and Notice of the Annual General
Meeting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is sent in the permitted mode to
all members.
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GUIDELINES TO SHAREHOLDER
DISPATCH OF AGM NOTICE & E-VOTING DURING AGM

As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general
meetings of the companies shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, Circular No.17 /2020 dated
April 13, 2020, Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13,
2021, Circular No. 19/2021 dated December 08, 2021, Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14,
2021 and Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 05, 2022, The forthcoming AGM will thus be held through
video conferencing (VC). Hence, Members can attend and participate in the ensuing AGM through

VC over MS Teams (Thru’ the Link to be provided thru' the registered email).

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 18 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and MCA General
Circular Neo. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Company is sending Notice of the AGM only
through e-mails registered with the Company or with the depository participant/ depository.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of
the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The
facility of participation at the AGM through VC will be made available to all Members, Directors,

Key Managerial Personnel, Auditors etc.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC will be counted for the purpose of

ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend
and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112
and Section 113 of the Comipanies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as the President

of India or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC and cast their votes through e-voting.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020,
the Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at

www.htllimited.com.

The AGM has been convened through VC in compliance with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular
No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and MCA
Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, MCA Circular No. 19/2021 dated December 08,

2021, MCA Circular No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021 and MCA Circular No. 2/2022 dated
May 05, 2022 .



GUIDELINES TO SHAREHOLDER
DISPATCH OF AGM NOTICE & E-VOTING DURING AGM

8. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and MCA Circulars dated
April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020,May 05, 2020, January 13, 2021, December 08, 2021, December 14,
2021 and May 05, 2022 the Company is providing facility of e-voting to its Members in respect of

the business to be transacted at the AGM, details of which are as follows: -

(i) Shareholders shall be able to cast their vote on all business items mentioned the AGM Notice

during the meeting only, on order of Poll by the Chairman of the Meeting.

(ii) For this purpose, the Company is providing a designated e-mail address as follows, the
Members can convey their votes, when a poll is required to be taken during the Meeting on

any resolution, at such designated e-mail address: -

Designated E-Mail Address for casting votes by Members:-

snarayanan@htllimited.com.

(iif) During the Meeting held through VC facility, where a poll on any item is required, the
Members shall cast their vote on the resolutions only by sending e-mails through e-mail
addresses, which are registered with the Company. The said e-mails shall only be sent to the

designated e-mail address circulated by the Company.

For any query/ grievance related to attending AGM through VC/0AVM or e-voting, please
contact to the following person:-

Company: HTL Limited

Name: S.Narayanan

E-mail: snarayanan@htllimited.com
Telephone/Mobile No. 7010456750

Fadk e ERk



HTL LIMITED [PROXY FORM|
(CIN: U93090TN1960PLC0O04355)
Regd.Office: GST Road, Guindy, Chennat — 600032. (Tamil Nadu)
Email: coo@htliimited.com  Website: www.htllimited.com
Phone: 044-22501020 Fax : 044-22500341.

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member (3) :
Registered Address
E-mail Id

Folio No § DP-ID / Client-ID*

*Applicable for investors holding shares in electronic form.

I/We being the member(s}) holding shares of HTL Ltd., of Rs.100/- each hereby appoint:

(1) Name:

E-Mail Id

(2) Name:

E-Mail 1d

(3) Name:

E-Mail 1d

Address:

Signature

Address:

or failing him:

Signature

Address:

or failing him:

Signature

And whose signature(s) are appended in Proxy Form as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for
me / us and my / our behalf at the 61 Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, 29
Tuly, 2022 at 12 Noon at GST Road, Guindy, Chennai — 600 032 (Tamil Nadu) thru® Video Conferencing
over MS Teams and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below;

*#] wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the Box below:

Resolution No. | Resolutions Optional

For Apgainst

Ordinary Business

L. To receive, consider and adopt Audited Financial Statements
of the Company for the year ended 31* March, 2022, Reports
of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.




To re-appoint Dr. R.M. Kastia (holding DIN: 00053059),
who refires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment as a

Director.
Special Business
3. To re-appoint Shri G.8.Naidu, Chief Operating Officer of the
Company as ‘Manager’ of the Company under the
Companies Act, 2013,
4, To consider and approve “appointment of Dr. Tamali
sengupta (DIN: 00358658) as an Independent Woman
Director.
Signed this day of 2022,
Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Shareholder

Signature of Proxy Holder (s)

Notes: (1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the

)

)

(3)

©)

Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 (Forty Eight) hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.

A Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

A person can act as a proxy on behall of members not exceeding fifty and holding an
aggregate of not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying

voting righis may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy
for any other person or shareholder,

This is onty optional. Please put an ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolution
indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ coloumn blank against any or all the

Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

Appointing a Proxy does not prevent a Member from attending the Meeting in person if he
$0 wishes.

Please complete all details including details of member(s) in above box before submission.




